

## CLAN MACLEAN HERITAGE TRUST A charity registered in Scotland no. SC024481

## **Maclean Bibliography**

The following is a list of books that would be of interest to anyone researching Clan Maclean matters. It is followed by a list of specific articles, in journals etc. Those with a star \* are in the Maclean Library, Isle of Mull Museum, Tobermory.

### **CONTENTS**

- A. Primary Reference Books for the Maclean lands, and their history
- B. Clan Maclean Genealogy and History
- C. Maclean Genealogies for families out with Scotland
- D. Clan Maclean Association
- E. Biographies of Macleans and of a few others
- F. General West Highland History
- G. General Books about the Clan Lands, Mull, Morvern, and the Maclean islands
- H. Books about outlying areas, mostly with a Maclean connection
- I. Histories and Genealogies of neighbouring clans
- J. General Maclean family interest [mostly because of the author]
- K. Specific Articles in Pamphlets and Journals
- L. Other books in the Maclean Library:
- M. Index

# A. Primary Reference Books for the Maclean lands, and their history

Black, Ronald [ed], To the Hebrides, Samuel Johnson's Journey to the Western Islands of Scotland, and James Boswell's Journal of a Tour to the Hebrides, Edinburgh, 2007.

Boswell, James, Journal of a Tour to the Hebrides with Samuel Johnson, LL.D., from the original manuscript with preface and notes, ed Frederick A. Pottle and Charles H, Bennett ,London, 1936.,

Brown, Iain Gordon and Cheape, Hugh (eds), Witness to Rebellion, John Maclean's Journal of the 'Forty-five and the Penicuik drawings, [NLS] East Linton, 1996.

Cameron, John (ed.), The Justiciary Records of Argyll and the Isles, 1664-1705, vol.1, [The Stair Society] Edinburgh, 1949.

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Records of Argyll, Legends, Traditions and Recollections of Argyllshire Highlanders, Edinburgh, 1885. [includes various Gaelic traditions of the Macleans, and also of Tiree]

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Waifs and Strays of Celtic Tradition, Vol 1 Argyllshire Series, 1889. [includes a description of some of the Maclean stones on Iona]

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Waifs and Strays of Celtic Tradition, Vol 5 Argyllshire Series, Campbell, John Gregorson [ed], 1895. [several chapters on Macleans]

Campbell, Herbert (ed), Abstracts of the Particular Register (General Register) of Sasines for Argyll, Bute and Dunbarton, otherwise known as the Argyll Sasines, 2 vols., Edinburgh, 1933, 34.

Campbell, John Lorne (ed), A Collection of Highland Rites and Customs: Copied by Edward Lhuyd from the Manuscript of the Rev. James Kirkwood (1650-1709) and annotated by him with the aid of the Rev. John Beaton, 1975.

\*Celtic Monthly [The] vols 1-21.

Cemetarii, The, Altera Merces, The Burial Grounds of Pennygown, Gruline, Knock, Cill an Alein, in North Mull, also the Memorials of Salen Church and Tributes inscribed on Macquarie's Mausoleum, Tobermory, 2003.

Cemetarii, The, Gus Am Bris an La, The Burial Grounds of Kilninian, Kilmore, Treshnish, Calgary, Ulva and Gometra, in North Mull, with the Memorials of Kilninian and Kilmore Churches, also isolated Memorials of N.W. Mull, Tobermory, 2006.

Census of Morvern, 1841, appendix to Thornber, Iain [ed], Morvern, A Highland Parish [reprint of Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867], Edinburgh, 2002.

Census of Mull, 1841, transcribed by Jean Whimp.

Census of Mull, 1851, transcribed by Jean Whimp.

Collectanea de Rebus Albanicis, Original Papers and Documents relating to the History of the Highlands and Islands, The Iona Club, Edinburgh, 1847.

Cregeen, Eric R. (ed.), Argyll Estate Instructions, Mull, Morvern, Tiree, 1771-1805, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1964.

Cregeen, Eric R. (ed.), Inhabitants of the Argyll Estate, 1779, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1963.

Cregeen, Eric R. and Mackenzie, Donald W., Tiree Bards and their Bardach, The Poets in a Hebridean Community, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1978

Currie, Jo, Macleans, A Biographical Dictionary of Mull People Mainly in the 18th and 19th centuries, Tobermory, 2002.

Currie, Jo, Mull Family Names for Ancestor Hunters, Tobermory, 1998.

Currie, Jo, Mull, The Island and its people, Edinburgh, 2000.

Drever, Helen, Tales of the Scottish Clans, Edinburgh, 1947. [Two pictures of Gillean]

Duart Castle, Guide Book, Norwich, 1978, 2000.

Faujas de Saint Fond, B., A Journey through England and Scotland to the Hebrides in 1784, 2 vols, Glasgow, 1907.

Fisher, Ian, Early Medieval Sculpture in the West Highlands and Islands, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 2001.

Fleming, Stuart E. [ed], Argyllshire Monumental Inscriptions, (pre 1855), vol 2, The Islands of Mull and Ulva, [Scottish Genealogy Society] Edinburgh, 2004.

\*Glen, David, The Music of the Clan Maclean, [Clan Maclean Association] Edinburgh, 1900.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of Argyll-.Register of Inventories, 1693-1702, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1909.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of Argyll-.Register of Testaments, 1674-1800, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1902.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of the Isles-.Register of Testaments, 1661-1800, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1902.

Haswell-Smith, Hamish, The Scottish Islands, a Comprehensive Guide to Every Scottish Island, Edinburgh, 1996.

Highland Papers, ed J.R.N. Macphail, 4 vols, [SHS] 1910-32, containing 'Papers relating to the Macleans of Duart', in vol.1

Imrie, John (ed.), The Justiciary Records of Argyll and the Isles, 1644-1742, vol. II, 1705-1742, [The Stair Society] Edinburgh, 1969.

Johnson, Samuel, A Journey to the Western Islands of Scotland, with an introduction and notes by J.D. Fleeman, Oxford, 1985.

Kincaid, A (ed) An Account of the Depredations committed upon the Clan Campbell and their followers during the years 1685 & 1686, Edinburgh, 1816.

Knox, John A Tour through the Highlands of Scotland and the Hebride Isles in 1786, 1975.

Livingstone of Bachuil, Alistair; Aikman, Christian W.H.; Hart, Betty Stuart, [eds], Muster Roll of Prince Charles Edward Stuart's Army, 1745-46, Aberdeen, 1984.

Loudon, Joseph Buist (ed) The Diary of James Robertson Sheriff Substitute of Tobermory 1842-1846, Argyll and Bute Library Service, 2001.

Macdonald, James, A General View of the Agriculture of the Hebrides or Western Isles of Scotland, Edinburgh, 1811.

Macfarlane, W., Genealogical Collections concerning Families in Scotland, 2 vols, [SHS] 1900.

Macfarlane, W., Geographical Collections relating to Scotland, 3 vols, [SHS] 1906-8.

McKay, Margaret M. (ed.), The Rev. Dr John Walker's Report on the Hebrides of 1764 and 1771, Edinburgh, 1980.

Maclean [of Dochgarroch], Allan, Telford's Highland Churches, The Highland Churches and Manses of Thomas Telford, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1989.

Maclean, Charles, The Isle of Mull: Placenames, Meanings and Stories, Dumfries, 1997.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas (ed.), Inhabitants of the Inner Isles, Morvern and Ardnamurchan, 1716, [Scottish Record Society] Edinburgh, 1998.

McNeill, P.G.B. and Macqueen, H.L., [eds] Atlas of Scottish History to 1707, Edinburgh, 1996.

Mactavish, Duncan C. (ed.), Minutes of the Synod of Argyll, 1639-1651, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1943.

Mactavish, Duncan C. (ed.), Minutes of the Synod of Argyll, 1652-1661, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1944.

Martin, Martin, A Description of the Western Islands of Scotland, Stirling, 1934. [Reprinted]

Moncreiffe of that Ilk, Sir Iain The Highland Clans, London, 1967. [Reprinted]

Munro, Jean & R. W. (eds), Acts of the Lords of the Isles, 1336-1493 [SHS], Edinburgh, 1986.

Munro, R. W. (ed.), Monro's Western Isles of Scotland [including Genealogies of the Clans, 1549], Edinburgh, 1961. [Reprinted] Munro R.W., Highland Clans and Tartans, London 1977.

Munro R.W., Kinsmen and Clansmen, 1971.

Oram, Richard, and Stell, Geofrey, Lordship and Architecture in Medieval and Renaissance Scotland, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 2005.

Origines Parochialis Scotiae [OPS], 3 vols in 2, Innes, Cosmo [ed], especially vol 2 pts i and ii, Edinburgh, 1851-2.

Register of Voters for Argyllshire, 1836. n.d. but presumably 1837.

Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland [RCAHMS], Argyll vol 3, Mull, Tiree, Coll and Northern Argyll, Edinburgh 1980.

Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland [RCAHMS], Argyll vol 4, Iona, Edinburgh 1980.

Skene, William F, Celtic Scotland, 3 vols, Edinburgh 1876-80, Reprinted New York, 1971.

Skene, William F, The Highlanders of Scotland, their Origin, History and Antiquities, 2 vols, London, 1836, Edited by Alex Macbain, Stirling, 1902.

Smith, J., General view of the agriculture of the county of Argyle, London, 1813.

[The First] Statistical Account of Scotland, 1791-1799, [OSA] edited by Sir John Sinclair, vol. viii, Argyll, (Mainland), [Gray, Malcolm ed] Wakefield, 1983.

[The Second] Statistical Account of Scotland [NSA], Edinburgh, 1835-45.

[The Third] Statistical Account, The County of Argyll [editor, MacDonald, C.M], Glasgow, 1961.

Steer, K. and Bannerman, J., Late Medieval Monumental Sculpture in the West Highlands, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 1977.

Stewart of Garth, David, Sketches of the Character, Institutions and Customs of the Highlanders of Scotland, Inverness, 1822, reprint 1885. [Reprinted]

Thomson, Derick S. (ed.), The Companion to Gaelic Scotland, Glasgow, 1994.

Thornber, Iain, Dail na Cille, The Field of the Church. Kingairloch Graveyard, Ardgour, and its inscribed stones, with notes on local history and folklore, privately printed, 2000

Thornber, Iain, The Carved Stones of Keil, Morvern, Argyll. privately printed, 2000

Thornber, Iain, The Castles of Morvern, Argyll, Their History, Antiquities and Architecture, Fort William, 1975.

Thornber, Iain, The Gaelic Bards of Morvern, privately printed.

Thornber, Iain, The Sculptured Stones of Cill Choluimchille, Morvern, Argyll, with notes on the Early Church and the Tomb of the Spanish Princess, privately printed, 1975.

Walker, Frank Arnold, The Buildings of Scotland, Argyll and Bute, London, 2000

West Highland Notes and Queries, Journal of the Society of West Highland and Island Historical Research.

[\* Series 1, Nos 5,6,7,9,11,12,13,15,16,17,18,19,20,24 and Index; Series 2: 1-16 (missing 4,6)]

Wormald, Jenny, Lords and Men in Scotland: Bonds of Manrent 1442-1603, Edinburgh, 1985.

## B. Clan Maclean Genealogy and History

Adam, Frank, revised by Innes of Learney, Thomas, Clans, Septs and Regiments, Edinburgh 1952. [Reprinted]

\*'A Seneachie', An Historical and Genealogical Account of the Clan Maclean from its first settlement at Castle Duart in the Isle of Mull to the present period, London, 1838.

\*Australian Macleans and Septs of the South African (Boer) War, 1899-1902

Burke's Landed Gentry of Great Britain, 19th edition, vol 1, The Kingdom of Scotland, 2001. [Genealogies of Chieftains etc]

Fraser-Mackintosh, Charles, Antiquarian Notes, Historical, Genealogical, and Social, Inverness-shire Parish by Parish, Second Series, Inverness, 1897. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Fraser-Mackintosh, Charles, The Minor Septs of Clan Chattan, Glasgow, 1898. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Mackechnie, John, The Clan Maclean: a Gaelic seapower, Edinburgh, 1954.

Mackenzie, Hector Hugh, The Macleans of Boreray, with cadet families and branches. Inverness, 1946. [Boreray genealogy]

Mackintosh, A.M., The Mackintoshes and Clan Chattan, Second Edition, Edinburgh, 1903. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Maclean, Alexander [ed] A breif [sic] genealogical account of the ffamily [sic] of McLean, Edinburgh, 1872. ['The Ardgour MS']

Maclean, Brian, Macleans of Killean and Ardfinaig, privately printed, 1999.

[Maclean, Charles Maxwell] History of the Clan Tarlach o'Bui, Aberdeen, 1865. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

\*MacLean, J.P., A History of the Clan MacLean from its first settlement at Duard Castle to the present time. Cincinnati, Ohio, 1889.

\*MacLean, J.P., An Account of the Surname of Maclean, or Macghillean, from the Manuscript of 1751, and A Sketch of the Life and Writings of Lachlan MacLean [of Arnabost, Isle of Coll], with other information pertaining to the Clan Maclean, Xenia, Ohio, 1914.

\*MacLean, J. P., An Examination into the Evidences of the Chiefship of the Clann-Ghilleain, Glasgow, 1895.

\*MacLean, J.P., The Family of Maclean, ed. From MS entitled "A brief general account of the family of Maclean, from its first settling in the island of Mull...in the year 1716" now in the Advocates Library, Edinburgh, Toronto, 1915.

\*Maclean, James N.M., The Macleans of Sweden, Edinburgh, 1971. [Branch of the Duart family]

[MacLean, Lachlan], The Native Steam-boat Companion, 1845 [contains various Maclean traditions]

Maclean, Sir Robert, 'Onward in Faith', Maclean of Carruth, 1740-1994, privately printed, 1994.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, From Clan to Regiment, Six Hundred Years in the Hebrides, 1400-2000, Barnsley, 2007. [Coll genealogy]

Maclean Bristol, Nicholas, Hebridean Decade, Mull, Coll and Tiree, 1761-1771, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1982.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, Murder under Trust: the Crimes and Death of Sir Lachlan Mor Maclean of Duart, 1558-1598, East Linton, 1998.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, Warriors and Priests: the History of the Clan Maclean, 1300-1570, East Linton, 1995.

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., Na Baird Leathanach: The Maclean Bards, 2 vols. Charlottetown, Canada, 1898, 1900.

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., The Clan Gillean. Charlottetown, Canada, 1899.

\*McNie, Alan, Clan Maclean (Extensively Revised), Your Clan Heritage, Jedburgh, 1989.

O Baoill, Colm, Eachann Bacach and other Maclean poets, [Scottish Gaelic Texts Society] Edinburgh, 1979.

O Baoill, Colm, Duanaire Colach 1537-1757, Aberdeen, 1997.

Whyte, Henry ['Fionn'], The Rankins, Pipers to the Macleans of Duart, and later to the Macleans of Coll, [Clan Maclean Association] Glasgow, 1907.

## C. Maclean Genealogies for families outwith Scotland/United Kingdom

### Australia

Kruger, Heather, Johann Carl August Kruger, and his Descendants in Australia, Australia, 1981. [descendants of Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]

\*McDonald, Jill, History of Ewen and Rachel McDonald and their Descendants, Australia, 1985. [descendants of Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]

McLean, Alister Bruce, A Brief History of the McLean Family of Morar, Inverness-shire, Scotland and Gippsland, Victoria, Australia, 2<sup>nd</sup> Edition, Australia, 2005.

McLean, Donald F., The Descendants of Donald McLaine of Grantully, Perthshire, 1710-1853, Part I, Australia, 1999.

McLean, Donald F., The Descendants of Peter and Eliza McLean in Australia, 1853-2000, Part II, Australia, 2000.

McLean, Donald and Christina, History of Donald & Christina McLean and their Descendants – First Wheat Crop Growers in South Australia 1838, Genealogical Council Inc, Australia, 1995. [Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]
McLean, John, The McLeans of Camp Creek, Australia, 1998.

#### Canada

MacLean, Kennedy, Our Ancestors, Antigonish, Nova Scotia, 1963.

Ross, D.K., The Pioneers and Churches, New Glasgow, Nova Scotia, nd (c.1955) [Dochgarroch descendants]

### **New Zealand**

Maclean, John Raglan, The Macleans of Howick and Tamaki, Auckland, 1997. [descendants of the [Mac]Leans of Blisland, Cornwall] United States of America

Bailey, Robert McLean, The Donald A. MacLean Family Genealogy, privately printed, Santa Monica CA, 1983. [Macleans from Sutherland] Hardy, Mary McLean, A Brief History of the Ancestry and Posterity of Allan Maclean, 1715-1786, Vernon, Connecticut, Berkeley CA, 1905. Mangold, Gretchen, History of the Carsons and McCleans, Bennington, NE, USA, 1993. [descendants of John McClean, Corkuran, Balybay, Ireland, born 1802]

### D. Clan Maclean Association

## **United Kingdom**

Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892; including MacLean, Magnus, Maclean Bards; Maclean Sinclair, A, Points to be cleared up in the History of the Macleans; MacLean, J.P., The Clans and their Crests, The Macleans. Glasgow, 1893.

\*Clan Maclean Magazine [The], vol 1 no 1, 1958.

\*Clan Maclean, 1-10, 1975-85. [\*6 missing]

\*Clan Maclean Magazine [The], vol 2 no 1-4, 1986-97.

Clan Maclean, vol 3, 1-3, 2001-4.

Clan Maclean, vol 4, 1-4, 2005-8.

\*Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine [The] 2002, 2007.

Clan Maclean, Litreachan, 1989-1991.

[Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan] Clan Maclean, Historical Notes to accompany the 1996 Gathering tour. 1996.

Maclean, Ian, Clan Maclean Map; History and References, [CMHT] 2007.

MacLean, J. P., Renaissance of the Clan Maclean: gathering at Duart Castle in 1912. Columbus, Ohio, 1913.

Maclean, James N.M. [ed], Clan Gillean (the Macleans), London 1955

\*[Maclean, James N.M.] Clan Maclean Association, London and District Branch, Secretary's Report, London 1954.

#### Australia

\*Australian Macleans and Septs of the South African (Boer) War, 1899-1902, Compiled for Clan Maclean in NSW.

Clan Maclean in New South Wales - a History 1788-1902, Compiled by Members of Clan Maclean in N.S.W.

Maclean, Marigold, The First Twenty Years, 1983-2003, CMAA, Australia, 2003.

[A] Record of the Visit of Sir Lachlan Maclean Bt., D.L. to N.S.W. Nov. 1997.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Archibald Lang McLean - Doctor, Explorer, Scientist, Soldier, Author, Australia, 2008.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW, A History 1788-1902, 2<sup>nd</sup> Supplement.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW Gazetteer 1788 - 1902, Vol. I.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW Gazetteer 1788 – 1902, Vol II.

\*Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW, The First Decade, 1985-1995, Australia, 1995.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs in NSW - Assisted and Bounty Immigrants, 1828-1900, 1st Supplement.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs in Australia in World War II, Series III - Royal Australian Air Force.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs of Australia in World War II, Series II - Royal Australian Navy.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs of NSW in World War I, Series I - Australian Army.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Septs of Clan Maclean in NSW 1788 to the early 1900s.

Sproule, Colin McLean and Norma, They Passed This Way - Clan Maclean and Septs in some NSW Cemeteries.

### Canada

### **United States of America**

\*MacLean, J.P., First Annual Gathering of the Clan Maclean of North America, St John, New Brunswick, 1893.

Note that many of the branches and associations of the Clan Maclean Association send copies of their magazines to the Library, but these are indexed under 'Archive', and not included here.

### E. Biographies of Macleans and of a few others

Baker, Richard, The Terror of Tobermory: An Informal Biography of Vice-Admiral Sir Gilbert Stephenson, 1972, Edinburgh 2005.

Cauble, Frank P., Biography of Wilmer McLean, Lynchburg, Virginia, 1987. [USA Civil War involvement]

Chalmers, Floyd S., A Gentleman of the Press, the story of Colonel John Bayne Maclean and the publishing empire he founded, Toronto, 1969. [Founder of Maclean's Magazine, Canada]

Cohen, Lysbeth, Elizabeth Macquarie, her Life and Times, Sydney, 1979. [Lachlan Macquarie's wife]

\*Cowan, James, Sir Donald Maclean, Wellington, NZ, 1940. [Tiree Maclean, father of Spy Donald]

Ellis, M. H., Lachlan Macquarie, his Life, Adventures and Times, Sydney, 1958.

Fairfax-Lucy, Norah, Hebridean Childhood, an Autobiography, Glasgow, 1981.

Fielding, Xan, One Man in His Time, The Life of Lieutenant-Colonel N.L.D. ('Billy') McLean, DSO, London, 1990. [2nd World War hero]

Fryer, Mary Beacock, Allan Maclean Jacobite General: the Life of an 18th Century Career Soldier, Toronto, 1987.

\*Hoey, Brian, Maclean of Duart, The Biography of Chips Maclean, Twickenham, 1986. [Lord Maclean]

\*Linkletter, Michael David, Bu Dual Dha Sin (That was His Birthright) Gaelic Scholar Alexander Maclean Sinclair, 1840-1924, Cambridge Mass, 2006. [Maclean genealogist]

Lobban, Margaret MacDonald, Lachann Dubh a' Chrogain, Lachlan Livingstone and his Grandsons, Iona, 2004. [Lochbuie bard]

MacKechnie, Aonghus, Carragh-chuimne, Two Islay monuments and two Islay people, Hector MacLean and John Francis Campbell, Islay, 2004. [Collector of Gaelic traditions]

Maclean, Alasdair, A Macdonald for the Prince, The story of Neil MacEachen, Stornoway 1982. [MacEachan was really a Maclean]

Maclean, Alasdair, Night falls on Ardnamurchan, the Twilight of a Crofting Family, London, 1984. [Autobiographical]

Maclean, Alan, No, I Tell a Lie, It Was the Tuesday, A trudge through the life and times of Alan Maclean, London, 1997. [Publisher]

MacLean, Colin, Monkeys, Bears and Gutta Percha, Memories of Manse, Hospital and War, Edinburgh, 2001. [Autobiography of journalism and much else]

Maclean, Fitzroy [of Duart and Morvaren], Short History of the Life of Col. Sir F.D. Maclean, Bart, as told by himself to E.E. Greenhill, typescript, c1920. [*The Chief*]

MacLean, Gilleasbuig, The Long, Long, Years, Durham NZ, 1996.

McLean, G.T., Captain Tom, Australia, 1986. [Autobiography]

MacLean, Hector, Fighters in Defence, with memories of the Glasgow Squadron, Kilmacolm, 1999. [C. Hector MacLean, Vice President CMA] Maclean of Pennycross, Iain Gilleasbuig, Handlist of the Papers of Rear-Admiral Iain Maclean of Pennycross, 1902-1988, Churchill Archives Centre, Cambridge.

MacLean, Isabella G., Your father and I, East Linton, 1998. [Aberdeen Autobiography by the mother of Colin MacLean]

MacLean, J. Angus, Making it Home, Charlottetown PEI, 1998. [Autobiography of Premier]

Maclean, James N.M., Reward is Secondary: the Life of a Political Adventurer and an Inquiry into the Mystery of Junius, London, 1963. [*Lauchlin Maclean*]

\*Maclean, John, Reminiscences of a Clachnacuddin Nonagenarian, Inverness, 1842, reprinted 1886.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Loraine, Indomitable Colonel, London, 1986. [Sir Alan Cameron's mother was a Maclean of Drimnin]

\*MacLean, Norman, The Former Days, London, 1945. [Moderator of the General Assembly of the Church of Scotland]

\*MacLean, Norman, Set Free, London, 1949.

\*MacLean, Norman, The Years of Fulfilment, London, 1953.

McLean, Ruari, True to Type, a typographical autobiography, London, 2000. [Typologist, lived on Mull]

Maclean, Veronica, Past Forgetting, A Memoir of Heroes, Adventure and Love, London 2002. [Sir Fitzroy of Dunconnel's wife]

Maclean, William Campbell, Memories of a Long Life, 1895. [A Maclean of Boreray]

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., Filidh na Coille, Dàin agus Òrain leis a' Bhàrd Mac-Gilleain agus le Feadhainn Eile. Charlottetown, Canada, 1901. [John MacLean the Poet]

McLynn, Frank, Fitzroy Maclean, London, 1992.

Marsden, Fiona, Lachlan Macquarie, from Mull to Australia, Tobermory, 2001.

Matheson, Dr Ann, Somhairlie Macgill-eain, Sorley MacLean, National Library of Scotland Exhibition Catalogue No 19, Edinburgh, 1981.

Metcalfe, G.E., Maclean of the Gold Coast: The life and times of George Maclean, 1801-1847, London, 1962. [Governor of the Gold Coast]

\*Milton, Nan, John MacLean, London, 1973. [Red MacLean, the Communist]

\*Morris, H.F., Two Brave Brothers, c1917. [John and Charles Rolls, Sir Fitzroy's nephews]

[Munro, R. W.], Lachlan Macquarrie XVI of Ulva, with notes on some clansmen in India, Karachi, 1944.

Munroe, John A, Louis McLane: Federalist and Jacksonian, New Brunswick, NJ, 1973. [1786-1857, Senator, Secretary of the Treasury, Secretary of State]

Ritchie, John, Lachlan Macquarie: a Biography, Melbourne, 1986.

Robert, Cecil, A Divided Life. A Biography of Donald MacLean. London 1988. [The famous spy's family came originally from Tiree]

Ross, Raymond J. and Hendry Joy, Sorley Maclean, Critical Essays, Edinburgh, 1986.

Snow, G.S., Arthur John Maclean, Bishop of Moray, Primus, Edinburgh, 1950.

Webster, Jack, Alistair MacLean, A Life, London, 1991. [The Novelist]

Whyte, Christopher [ed], Somhairle Macgill-eain, Sorley Maclean, Dain do Eimhir, Poems to Eimhir, Glasgow, 2002.

Young, James D. John Maclean: Clydeside Socialist, Glasgow, 1992. [Red MacLean, the Communist]

## F. General West Highland History

Bray, Elizabeth, The Discovery of the Hebrides, Voyages to the Western Isles 1745-1883, Edinburgh, 1996.

Brown, Keith M., Bloodfeud in Scotland, 1573-1625: Violence, Justice and Politics in an Early Modern Society, Edinburgh, 2003.

Bumsted, J. M., The People's Clearance, Highland Emigration to British North America, 1770-1815, Edinburgh, 1982.

Cameron, Ewen A., Land for the People? The British Government and the Scottish Highlands, c.1880-1925, East Linton, 1996.

Campbell, J. L. and Thomson, Derick, Edward Lhuyd in the Scottish Highlands 1699-1700, Oxford, 1963.

Clark, Wallace, The Lord of the Isles Voyage, Kildare, Ireland, 1993.

Cooper, Derek, Road to the Isles, Travellers in the Hebrides 1770-1914, Glasgow, 1990.

Cowan, Edward J., Montrose for Covenant and King, Edinburgh, 1977, 1995.

Cowan, Edward J. and McDonald, R. Andrew, [eds] Alba, Celtic Scotland in the Medieval Era, East Linton, 2000.

Cregeen, Eric R., Recollections of an Argyllshire Drover and Other West Highland Chronicles [Bennett, Margaret, ed], Edinburgh 2004.

Devine, T. M., Clanship to Crofters' War, the Social Transformation of the Scottish Highlands, Manchester, 1994.

Devine, T. M., The Great Highland Famine, Hunger, Emigration and the Scottish Highlands in the Nineteenth Century, Edinburgh, 1988.

Dodgshon, Robert A., From Chiefs to Landlords, Social and Economic Change in the Western Highlands and Islands c. 1493-1820, Edinburgh, 1998.

Donaldson, M.E.M., Wanderings in the Western Highlands and Islands, Paisley, 1920.

Donaldson, M.E.M., Further Wanderings mainly in Argyll, Paisley, 1926

Fergusson of Kilkerran, Sir James, Argyll in the Forty-five, London, 1951.

Fraser Darling, Frank, West Highland Survey, Oxford, 1955.

Fraser Darling, Frank, and Boyd, John Morton, Highlands and Islands, 10<sup>th</sup> Edition 1979.

Giblin, Cathaldus (ed), Irish Franciscan Mission to Scotland 1619-1646, Documents from Roman Archives, Dublin, 1964.

Gibson, John S., Ships of the '45, London, 1967.

Grant, I. F., The Lordship of the Isles; wanderings in the lost Lordship, Edinburgh, 1935. [Reprinted]

Grant, I. F., Highland Folk Ways, Edinburgh, 1995. [Reprinted]

Gray, Malcolm, The Highland Economy, 1750-1850, Edinburgh, 1957.

Gregory, Donald, The History of the West Highlands and Isles of Scotland, Edinburgh, 1836, 1881, 1975. [Reprinted]

Haldane, A. R. B., The Drove Roads of Scotland, 1968, Reprinted Colonsay, 1995.

Hopkins, Paul, Glencoe and the end of the Highland War, Edinburgh, 1986.

Hunter, James, A Dance called America: the Scottish Highlands, the United States and Canada, Edinburgh, 1994.

Hunter, James (ed.), For the People's Cause: from the writings of John Murdoch, Highland and Irish land reformer, Edinburgh, 1986.

Hunter, James, Scottish Exodus: travels among a worldwide clan, Clan MacLeod Heritage Trust, Edinburgh, 2005.

Hunter, James, The Making of the Crofting Community, Edinburgh, 1987.

Kirk, James [ed], The Church in the Highlands, Edinburgh, 1998.

\*Logan, James, The Scottish Gael, 2 vols, 1831, [ed Rev Alex Stewart] Edinburgh, 1876.

Lynam, C.C. The Log of The Blue Dragon, 1892-1904, London, 1908.

MacAulay, John, Birlinn - Longships of the Hebrides, Harris, 1996.

MacConnochie, Alex I., The Deer and Deer Forests of Scotland, London, 1923.

Macculloch, John, The Highlands and Western Islands of Scotland, 4 vols, London, 1824.

McDonald, R. Andrew, The Kingdom of the Isles, Scotland's Western Seaboard, c1100-c1336, East Linton, 1996.

Macinnes, Allan I., Clanship, Commerce and the House of Stuart, 1603-1788, East Linton, 1996.

Macinnes, John, The Evangelical Movement in the Highlands of Scotland 1688 to 1800, Aberdeen, 1951.

Mackechnie, John [ed], The Dewar Manuscripts, vol 1, Glasgow, 1963.

Mackenzie, W.C., The Highlands and Isles of Scotland, A Historical Survey, revised edition 1949.

Maclean, Alasdair, and Gibson, John S., Summer Hunting a Prince, The Escape of Charles Edward Stuart, Stornoway, 1992.

Maclean, Fitzroy, Highlanders, A History of the Highland Clans, London, 1995.

Maclean of Dochgarroch, Loraine [ed], The Middle Ages in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1981.

Maclean of Dochgarroch Loraine [ed], The Seventeenth Century in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1986.

Macleod, John, Highlanders, A History of the Gaels, Edinburgh, 1996.

Meek, Donald E., Tuath is tighearna, Tenants and Landlords, an Anthology of Gaelic Poetry of Social and Political Protest from the Clearances to the Land Agitation (1800-1890) [Scottish Gaelic Texts Society], Edinburgh, 1995.

Murray W.H., The Hebrides, 1969.

Pitts, Jim [ed], The Log of The Blue Dragon III, Northampton, 2000.

Rixon, Denis, The West Highland Galley, Edinburgh, 1998, 2003.

Roberts, John L., Feuds, Forays and Rebellions, History of the Highland Clans 1475-1625, Edinburgh, 1999.

Sadler, John, Clan Donald's Greatest Defeat, the Battle of Harlaw 1411, Stroud, 2005.

Stevenson, David, Scottish Covenanters and Irish Confederates, Scottish-Irish Relations in the Mid-Seventeenth Century, [Ulster Historical Foundation] Belfast, 1981.

Stevenson, David, Highland Warrior: Alasdair MacColla and the Civil Wars, Edinburgh, 1994. reprint of Alasdair MacColla and the Highland problem in the Seventeenth Century, Edinburgh, 1980.

Sutherland, Donald, Butt and Ben, A Highland Boyhood, Edinburgh, 1963, Reprinted as 'Highland Boyhood', 1996. [Chapter on Murdoch and Kenneth Maclaine of Lochbuie]

Weyndling, Walter, Ferry Tales of Argyll and the Isles, Stroud, 1996.

Whitehead, G. Kenneth, The Deer Stalking Grounds of Great Britain and Ireland, London, 1960. [includes estates and deer forests on the Island of Mull]

### G. General Books about the Clan Lands, Mull, Morvern, and the Maclean islands

Banks, Noel, Six Inner Hebrides, Eigg, Rum, Canna, Muck, Coll, Tiree, Newton Abbot, 1977.

Beveridge, Erskine, Coll and Tiree, Their Prehistoric Forts and Ecclesiastical Antiquities, Edinburgh, 1903.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, A Treasure Lost, The Spanish Wreck in Tobermory Bay, Tobermory, 2000.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, A Walk Round Tobermory, Tobermory, 1988.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, Walking in North Mull, Tobermory, Revised and Updated 2002.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, Walking in South Mull and Iona, Tobermory, Revised and Updated 2002.

Campbell, George W., Torosay 2000, A collection of 200 paragraphs relating to the history of the parish of Torosay, Oban, 1983 Crumley, Jim, The Heart of Mull, 1996.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Isle of Iona, Romsey, 1999.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Isle of Mull, Romsey, 1994.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Island of Staffa, Romsey, 1993.

Douglas, Meg, Lost Townships, Silent Voices, a field study of Mull, Argyll and Bute Library Service, 2003.

Dunlop, Jean The British Fisheries Society 1786-1893, Edinburgh, 1978.

Eckstein, Eve, Historic Visitors to Mull, Iona and Staffa, London, 1992.

Faithfull, Joan, The Ross of Mull Granite Quarries, Iona, 1995 Second Edition 2005

Findlay, Campbell, Mull of the Isles the Fairest, 1988.

Gaskell, Philip, Morvern Transformed: A Highland Parish in the Nineteenth Century, Cambridge, 1968. [Reprinted]

Graham-Campbell, David, Portrait of Argyll and the Southern Hebrides, London, 1978.

Guthrie-James, David, Torosay Castle and Gardens, 1985.

Hannan, Thomas, Iona and Some Satellites, Edinburgh, nd.

Hannan, Thomas, The Beautiful Isle of Mull, with Iona and the Isle of Saints, Edinburgh, 1926.

Hesketh, Nick, The Story of Mull and Iona, Edinburgh, 1988.

Houston, Colin (ed), Memories of Mull, Iona Houston, 1881 to 1957, Bunessan, nd.

Howard, J, and Jones, A, The Isle of Ulva, A Visitor's Guide, Ulva, 1990

Lamont, Gene Donald, They Came From Tiree, Tiree and the Famine Emigrants, a History of Tiree, 7000BC to 1851, revised edition 2007.

LeMay, Jackie, Ardmeanach: A Hidden Corner of Mull, Iona, 1995.

LeMay, Jackie, and Gardner, Joanna, Glen More: a drive through history, Tobermory, 2003.

Love, John A., Rum: A Landscape Without Figures, Edinburgh, 2001.

Love, John A., The Isle of Rum, 1982.

Low, Margaret, Highland Memories, privately printed, 1992.

Macarthur, E. Mairi, Columba's Island: Iona from Past to Present, Edinburgh, 1995.

Macarthur, E. Mairi, [with Colin Baxter], Iona, Grantown-on-Spey, 1997.

Macarthur, E. Mairi, Iona, the Living Memory of a Crofting Community, 1750-1914, Edinburgh, 1990, 2nd Edition 2002.

MacCormick, John, An t-eilean Muileach: the Island of Mull, its History, Scenes and Legends, Glasgow, 1923.

MacCulloch, Donald B. The wondrous Isle of Staffa, Its History, Geology, Features and Associations, 3rd Edition, Edinburgh, 1956.

MacDougall, Betty Folklore from Coll (nd).

MacDougall, Betty, Guide to Coll, Glasgow, 1986.

Macintyre, Lorn, Tobermory Days, Stories from an Island, Glendaruel, 2003.

Mackenzie, Anne, Island voices: Air bilibh an t-sluaigh: traditions of north Mull, Edinburgh, 2002.

Mackenzie, David, Farmer in the Western Isles, London, 1954. [Reprinted]

Mackenzie, Donald W., As it was, Sin mar a Bha, An Ulva Boyhood, Edinburgh, 2000.

Mackichan, David, All you Need to Know about the Pilgrims' Way to Iona, Craignure, 1987.

Maclean, Fiona, Around Lochaber, Scotland in old Photographs, Stroud, 1996.

MacLean, J.P., Fingal's Cave, Cincinnati, 1890.

MacLean, J. P., History of the Island of Mull, embracing Description, Climate, Geology, Flora, Fauna, Antiquities, Folklore, Superstitions,

Traditions, with an account of its inhabitants, 2 vols, Greenville, Ohio, 1923.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, The Kirk on the Hill, The story of the Church in the Island of Coll AD 550-2007, Coll, 2007.

McLeay, Alison, The Tobermory Treasure, the True Story of the Fabulous Armada Galleon, 1986.

MacLeod, John N., Memorials of the Rev. Norman Macleod Senior, DD, Edinburgh, 1898.

MacLeod, Norma, Raasay, The Island and its Peoples, 2002.

Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Tall Tales from an island, Barr, 1984.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Highways and Byways in Mull and Iona, Barr, 1988, reprinted 1992.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Mull and Iona, Newton Abbot, 1995.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Tobermory Teuchter, a first hand account of life on Mull in the early years of the 20th century, Edinburgh, 1998, reprinted 2003.

Macnab, Peter, Traditional Tales of Mull, Tobermory, 1998.

Macquarrie, Alan, Iona through the ages, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1983.

McQuarrie, Duncan M., The Placenames of Mull, Inverness, 1982.

Martin, Paula, Lochaber, a Historical Guide, Edinburgh, 2005.

Meek, Donald E., Island Harvest: A History of Tiree Baptist Church, 1838-1988, Tiree, 1988.

Meek, Donald E., Sunshine and Shadow: The Story of the Baptists of Mull, Edinburgh, 1991.

Memoir of The Geological Survey of Scotland - Tertiary And Post-Tertiary Geology of Mull, Loch Aline and Oban, [HMSO] London, 1924.

Mercer, John, Hebridean Islands, Glasgow, 1974. [re Jura contains references to Macleans]

Miers, Mary, The Western Seaboard, An Illustrated Architectural Guide, Edinburgh, 2008.

Munro, Jean, The Founding of Tobermory, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1976.

Murray, W.H., The Islands of Western Scotland, the Inner and Outer Hebrides, 1973.

Ogg, Diana, Coll, island of the Hebrides, London, 1988.

Orr, Willie, Discovering Argyll, Mull and Iona, Edinburgh, 1990.

Peel, Hilary, A History of Kilmore Church, Tobermory, 2005.

Peel, Hilary, Salen Church, A History, Tobermory, 2001.

Riddle, Carol, A township on the Ross of Mull, a study in local history, published by Highland Renewal, Fionnphort, nd.

Ritchie, Alec & Euphemia, Iona Past and Present, Edinburgh, 1934.

Rixon, Denis, The Small Isles, Canna, Rum, Eigg, and Muck, Edinburgh, 2001.

Ross of Mull Historical Centre, Discover the Ross Explore the Social History, Archaeology and Landscape of the Ross of Mull, Bunessan, 2004.

Swire, Otta, The Inner Hebrides and their Legends, London, 1964.

Thomson, D.P., Iona to Ardnamurchan by Coll, Coll and Tiree, A pilgrimage through the Centuries, Crieff, 1956.

Thornber, Iain [ed], Morvern, A Highland Parish, reprint of Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867, with Introduction, Notes and Appendices, and many unpublished illustrations Edinburgh, 2002.

Walker, Frank Arnold, Argyll and the Islands, An Illustrated Architectural Guide, Edinburgh, 2003.

Whittaker, Jean, Mull: Monuments and History, Tobermory, 1999.

### H. Books about outlying areas, mostly with a Maclean connection

Beveridge, Erskine, North Uist, The Archaeology and Topography, Edinburgh, 1911.

Bridgland, Urquhart Castle and the Great Glen, London, 2005.

Caldwell, David, Islay: The Land of the Lordship, Edinburgh 2008.

Caldwell, David, Islay, Jura and Colonsay: A Historical Guide, Edinburgh, 2001.

Campbell, John Lorne, Canna, the Story of a Hebridean Island, Edinburgh, 1994.

Carmichael, Lismore in Alba, Perth, 1951. Reprinted

Dressler, Camille, Eigg, the Story of an Island, Edinburgh, 1998.

Hay, Robert, Lismore, The Great Garden, Edinburgh, 2009.

Lawson, Bill, The Churches at Howmore - A South Uist Church Site in its Historical Setting, 1998.

Lawson, Bill, North Uist in History and Legend, Edinburgh 2004.

MacDougall of MacDougall, Hope, Kerrera; Mirror of History. Reprint, Lochar, 2004.

MacEwan, Laurence, A Guide to Eigg and Muck, 1973.

Mackay, William, Urguhart and Glenmoriston, Inverness, 1893, 1914.

Robertson, Charles, Ancient Hebridean Tales of Jura, collected 1908 to 1914, edited by Peter Youngson, Kirriemuir, n.d.

Shedden, Hugh, The Story of Lorn, and its Isles and Oban, Oban, 1938.

Storrie, Margaret, May: Biography of an Island, Islay, 1997.

Tabraham, Chris, Urquhart Castle, [Historic Scotland] Haddington, 1991, 2002.

Youngson, Peter, Jura, Island of Deer, Edinburgh, 2001.

### I. Histories and Genealogies of neighbouring clans

Bannerman, John, The Beatons: a medical kindred in the Classical Gaelic tradition, Edinburgh 1986, 1998.[Reprinted] Boardman, Stephen, The Campbells, 1250-1513, Edinburgh, 2006.

Byrne, Kevin, Colkitto! A Celebration of Clan Donald of Colonsay, 1570-1647, Colonsay, 1997.

Campbell of Airds, Alastair A History of Clan Campbell, 3 vols, Edinburgh, 2000-2004.

Downie, Sir Alex. Mackenzie & Downie Alister Mackinnon, Genealogical Account of the Family of Mackinnon, 1882.

Grant, I.F., The Macleods, the History of a Clan, 1200-1956, London, 1959. [Reprinted]

McAnna, James, The Ulva Families of Shotts, Shotts, 1991.

MacDonald, Rev A., and MacDonald, Rev A, Clan Donald, 3 vols, Inverness, 1896-1904.

Macdonald of Castleton, Donald J., Clan Donald, 1978.

MacDonald, Norman, The Clan Ranald of Garmoran, A History of the MacDonalds of Clanranald, Edinburgh, 2008.

MacDougall, Jean, Highland Postbag, the Correspondence of Four MacDougall Chiefs 1715-1865, London, 1984.

\*McGillivray, Robert, The Clan MacGillivray, West Calder, 2004.

McGilvray, Roy, McGilvray of Pennygael, typescript, 1998.

Mackinnon, Sir Alex. Downie, Genealogical Account of the Family of Mackinnon, London, 1883.

MacKinnon, The Chief and Chiefship of Clan MacKinnon, 1931.

Mackinnon, Donald D., Memoirs of Clan Fingon, Tunbridge Wells, n.d.

MacLeod, Bruce, Genealogy of Family Macleod of Talisker, Australia, 1990. [closely connected with the Macleans of Coll]

Macneil of Barra, Robert L., Castle in the Sea, London, 1964.

Macneil of Barra, Robert L., The Clan Macneil, Clann Niall of Scotland, USA, 1923, Scotpress, 1985.

McPhee, Ian, The McPhees of Argyll, Australia, 2006.

Munro, R. W. and Macquarrie, Alan, Clan MacQuarrie, a History, Auburn, Mass., 1996.

Stewart of Ardvorlich, John, The Camerons, A History of Clan Cameron, Clan Cameron Association, 1971.

## J. General Maclean family interest [mostly because of the author]

Hendry, Quest for a Babe, Edinburgh, 1990. [Novel]

Maclean, Alexander, The Story of the Kirk in Nova Scotia [ed A. Maclean-Sinclair] Pictou, 1911.

MacLean, Alistair, Hebridean Altars, 1937. Reprinted [Father of Alistair, the Novelist]

Maclean, Calum I., with Foreword by Sorley Maclean and Photographs by Cailean Maclean, The Highlands, Edinburgh 1990. [*The Folklorist, brother of Sorley*]

Maclean [of Dunconnel], Charles, Island on the Edge of the World. Edinburgh, 1972. [Reissued]

Maclean, Charles [Lord Maclean], Only, London, 1979.

Maclean, Charles [Edinburgh], The Clan Almanac, Moffat, 1990.

\*Maclean, Fitzroy, A Concise History of Scotland, 1970.

Maclean, Fitzroy, Bonnie Prince Charlie, London, 1988.

Maclean, Fitzroy, The Isles of the Sea, Glasgow, 1985.

\*McLean, G.R.D., Poems of the Western Highlanders, London, 1961.

\*McLean, Hugh [1794-1878], In the Selkirk Colony, 1812-1816.

\*MacLean, J.P., A MacLean Souvenir. Franklin, Ohio, 1918.

MacLean, J. P., An Historical Account of the Settlements of Scotch Highlanders in America, Cleveland, 1900.

MacLean, J.P., Flora MacDonald in America, with a Brief Sketch of Her Life and Adventures, Lumberton, NC., 1909.

\*Maclean, John, Historical and Traditional Sketches of Highland Families and of the Highlands, Inverness, 1895.

\*MacLean, Lachlan, Adhamh agus Eubh na Craobh Sheanachais nan Gael, Edinburgh, 1837.

MacLean, Lachlan, An Historical Account of Iona, Glasgow, 1833.

\*MacLean, Lachlan The History of the Celtic Language, Glasgow, 1840.

\*MacLean, Magnus, The Literature of the Celts, 1902.

McLean, Marianne, The People of Glengarry: Highlanders in transition, 1745-1820, Montreal, 1991.

MacLean, Rory, The Oatmeal Ark: From the Western Isles to a Promised Sea, London, 1997, Republished 2008. [Novel]

MacLean, Sorley and Crichton Smith, Ian, Eimhir, Stornoway, 1999

Maclean, Veronica, Lady Maclean's Cook Book, London, 1966.

Maclean, Virginia, Much Entertainment, a visual and culinary record of Johnson and Boswell's tour of Scotland in 1773, London, 1973.

\*Maclean, Will, Voyages.

Maclean Sinclair, A., Comhchruinneachadh Ghlinn-a-Bhàird: the Glenbard Collection of Gaelic Poetry, Parts 1-3, Charlottetown, PEI, 1888-90.

Maclean Sinclair, A, Clarsach na Coille, 1881.

Maclean Sinclair, A., Dàin Spioradail le Iain Mac-Gilleain, Edinburgh. 1880

Maclean Sinclair, A., The Gaelic Bards from 1411 to 1715, 1715-65, 1765-1825, 1825-1875 [4 vols], Canada, 1890, 1892, 1896, 1904.

MacLean Watt, Lauchlan, Scottish Life and Poetry, London, 1912.

McSwan, Eleanor H., Historic Buildings of Maclean, Maclean District Historical Society, Australia, 1976.

McSwan, Eleanor H., Maclean and the Scottish Connection, Maclean District Historical Society, Australia, 1986.

# K. Specific Articles in Pamphlets and Journals

NB Notes and Queries of the Society of West Highland and Island Research [SWHIHR] has so many articles about the history of the Macleans and of the area, that they are not included in the following list

Campbell, Niall A., 'An old Inventory of the Laird of Coll's Writs', The Celtic Review (October 1912).

Campbell, Neil D., 'An Old Tiree Rental of the year 1662', SHR 9, 1912.

Cowan, E.J. 'Fishers in Drumlie Waters: Campbell Expansion in the time of Gilleasbuig Grumach', in TGSI vol LIV (1984-86).

Cowan, E.J. 'Clanship kinship and the Campbell acquisition of Islay', in SHR, Oct 1979

Cregeen, Eric R., 'The changing role of the house of Argyll in the Scottish Highlands', in Scotland in the Age of Improvement, Edinburgh, 1996.

Cregeen, Eric R., 'The tacksmen and their successors, a study of tenurial reorganisation in Mull, Morvern and Tiree in the early eighteenth century' in Scottish Studies, 13, 1969.

Currie, Jo, 'Mull People' in The Scottish Genealogist, 44, 1, 1997.

Goodare, Julian, 'The Statutes of Iona in context', in SHR, 77,1, 203, 1998.

Graham-Campbell, David, 'The younger generation in Argyll at the beginning of the eighteenth century', in Scottish Studies, 18, 1974. Macarthur, Dugald, 'Some emigrant ships from the West Highlands', in TGSI, 55 (1986-8).

Macdonald, Duncan, 'Eminent Highland doctors. Dr Hector McColl, Tobermory' in The Caledonian Medical Journal [The Journal of the Caledonian Medical Society], new series, vol. vi. July 1904, (October 1906).

MacDonald, Murdo, 'The droving trade in the records of the commissioners of supply of Argyllshire' in TGSI, 58, (1993-94).z MacInnes, J., 'West Highland Sea Power', in TGSI vol. xlviii (1972-4).

Mackleane, Sir John, 'Remarks on the Loyal Dissuasive', in The Loyall Dissuasive [Alexander D. Murdoch ed), SHS, 1902.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'Brigadier General Allan Maclean, 1725-1798', CMHT pamphlet, 2007.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Evolution of Maclean Heraldry' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Names of the Clan Maclean' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Personal names of the Macleans' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

\*Maclean of Dunconnel, Charles, 'The spy who never was; Was Sir Fitzroy Maclean of Dunconnel the real James Bond?' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Donald, 'The Ardgour ancestry and the early Macleans' in The Clan Maclean Magazine, vol 2 no 9.

\*Maclean, Lt Col Donald, 'Clan Maclean Pipers' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Maclean, Ian, '236 – The New Brunswick (MacLean) Kilties', CMHT pamphlet, 2006.

MacLean, J.P., 'The Clans and their Crests, the Macleans', in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

Maclean, James N.M., 'The Camerons of Glendessary and Dungallon', in The Scottish Genealogist vol. xvii, no 4 (December 1971).

Maclean, James N.M., 'The Frasers of Kiltarlity: cadets of a deposed Mackintosh chief', in The Scottish Genealogist vol. xvi, no 2 (June 1969). MacLean, Magnus 'Maclean Bards' in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Rivals for leadership of the Clan Maclean: Brolas versus Torloisk' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Jacobite Officers in the Scots Brigade in Dutch Service', in JSAHR, vol. 82 no 330 (Summer 2004).

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Murdoch Maclaine, Lieutenant 42nd Foot?' in JSAHR, vol. 77 no 310 (Summer 1999).

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'The Battle of Inverkeithing and the Macleans 20th July 1651', CMHT pamphlet, 2001, also in The Clan Maclean Magazine Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'The Macleans from 1560-1707: A Re-appraisal', in Maclean of Dochgarroch Loraine [ed], The Seventeenth Century in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1986.

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'Clann Duilligh' in Mac-Talla, vol 12, no 2, Cape Breton, 1903.

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'Points to be cleared up in the History of the Macleans' in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Origin of the Clan Maclean', in Celtic Magazine, 13 (1888).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Macleans of Crossapol', in Celtic Monthly 11 (1903).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Macleans of Boreray', in Celtic Monthly 13 (1905).

MacLean, Ir J., 'Genealogie Macleane', in Gens Nostra Geslacht Maandbland Der Nederladse Genealogische Vereniging, Maart 1973.

MacLean, Ir J., 'Huwelijken Van Militairen, behorende tot het eerste regiment van de Schotse Brigade in Nederland, ontleend aan de gereformeerde trouwboeken van 1674 tot 1708', in DeBrabatseLeeuw (Sept. Okt. 1971).

Martin, Colin, 'Resurrecting the Swan: Archaeology of a Cromwellian Shipwreck, 1653', in History Scotland Magazine, vol 1, no 1.

Meek, Donald E., 'Evangelical missionaries in the early nineteenth century Highlands', in Scottish Studies, 28 (1987).

Meek, Donald E, 'The Baptists of the Ross of Mull: Evangelical Experience and Social Change in a West Highland Community', in Northern Studies, 26, 1989.

Morison, Neil Rankin, 'Clann Duiligh: Piobairean Chloinn Ghill-Eathain', in TGSI vol. XXXVII (1934-6).

Munro, R. W., 'Governor Lachlan Macquarie and his family circle', in The Scottish Genealogist, 36, 1, 1989.

Munro, R. W., 'The Macquarries of Ulva' in The Scottish Genealogist, xv.2, p.25-30, 1968.

\*Roads, Elizabeth, 'Maclean Heraldry' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Rose, David G., 'Skirmish on Granish Moor, June 1689, a Forgotten Episode in the Campaign of Bonnie Dundee', in History Scotland Magazine, vol. 5, no 6 (Nov/Dec 2005); vol. 6, no.1 (Jan/Feb 2006).

Sanger, Keith, 'Mull and the Maclean pipers' in The Piping Times, June 1990.

\*Scarlet, James D., 'Tartans of the Clan Maclean', in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'Marriage, Divorce and Concubinage in Gaelic Scotland' in TGSI vol. li, 466.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'Origins of clans', in The Companion to Gaelic Scotland, (D.S. Thomson ed) 1983.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'The origins and Ancestry of Somerled', in SHR vol, XLV, (1966).

Thomson, Derick S., 'Gaelic Learned Orders and Literati in Medieval Scotland', in Scottish Studies, XII, (1968, i).

\*Thornber, Iain, 'Maclean's skull', in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

Thornber, Iain, 'Rats: an old Morvern Song', in TGSI, vol. LV, (1989).

Thornber, Iain, 'Some Morvern Songwriters of the Nineteenth Century' in TGSI 53 (1982-84).

Turner D.J. and Dunbar, H.G., 'Breacachadh Castle, Coll excavation and field survey, 1965-8', in PSAS 102 (1969-70) 155-87.

### L. Other books in the Maclean Library

\*An Act to extend the Municipal Boundaries of the City of Glasgow; to amend the Acts relating to the Police and Statute Labour, 1858.

<sup>\*</sup>Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Origins of the Macleans', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

<sup>\*</sup>Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The MacQuarries of Ulva', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

<sup>\*</sup>Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The MacGillivrays of Mull', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

<sup>\*</sup>City of Glasgow Police, Regulations, Orders and Instructions, 1857.

<sup>\*</sup>City of Glasgow Police, Byelaws for Stage and Hackney Carriages and their Drivers, City Porters and Chimney Sweepers, 1864.

### M. Index

Adam, Frank, revised by Innes of Learney, Thomas, Clans, Septs and Regiments, Edinburgh 1952. [Reprinted]

\*'A Seneachie', An Historical and Genealogical Account of the Clan Maclean from its first settlement at Castle Duart in the Isle of Mull to the present period, London, 1838.

\*An Act to extend the Municipal Boundaries of the City of Glasgow; to amend the Acts relating to the Police and Statute Labour, 1858.

\*Australian Macleans and Septs of the South African (Boer) War, 1899-1902, Compiled for Clan Maclean in NSW.

Bailey, Robert McLean, The Donald A. MacLean Family Genealogy, privately printed, Santa Monica CA, 1983. [Macleans from Sutherland]

Baker, Richard, The Terror of Tobermory: An Informal Biography of Vice-Admiral Sir Gilbert Stephenson, 1972, Edinburgh 2005.

Banks, Noel, Six Inner Hebrides, Eigg, Rum, Canna, Muck, Coll, Tiree, Newton Abbot, 1977.

Bannerman, John, The Beatons: a medical kindred in the Classical Gaelic tradition, Edinburgh 1986, 1998.[Reprinted]

Beveridge, Erskine, Coll and Tiree, Their Prehistoric Forts and Ecclesiastical Antiquities, Edinburgh, 1903.

Beveridge, Erskine, North Uist, The Archaeology and Topography, Edinburgh, 1911.

Black, Ronald [ed], To the Hebrides, Samuel Johnson's Journey to the Western Islands of Scotland, and James Boswell's Journal of a Tour to the Hebrides, Edinburgh, 2007.

Boardman, Stephen, The Campbells, 1250-1513, Edinburgh, 2006.

Boswell, James, Journal of a Tour to the Hebrides with Samuel Johnson, LL.D., from the original manuscript with preface and notes, ed Frederick A. Pottle and Charles H, Bennett ,London, 1936.,

Bray, Elizabeth, The Discovery of the Hebrides, Voyages to the Western Isles 1745-1883, Edinburgh, 1996.

Bridgland, Urquhart Castle and the Great Glen, London, 2005.

Brown, Iain Gordon and Cheape, Hugh (eds), Witness to Rebellion, John Maclean's Journal of the 'Forty-five and the Penicuik drawings, [NLS] East Linton, 1996.

Brown, Keith M., Bloodfeud in Scotland, 1573-1625: Violence, Justice and Politics in an Early Modern Society, Edinburgh, 2003.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, A Treasure Lost, The Spanish Wreck in Tobermory Bay, Tobermory, 2000.

<sup>\*</sup>Flying over Holland, 1973.

<sup>\*</sup>Maclean, Ian G.C., Commonsense Security in Industry, 1993.

<sup>\*</sup>MacLean, Isabelle McCall, The Scottish Covenanter Genealogical Index (1630-1712), USA, 2007.

<sup>\*</sup>MacLean, Isabelle McCall, The Oath and The Covenant, The "Killing Times" in Scotland, USA, 2007 [historical novel]

<sup>\*</sup>MacLean, Marjory, Taking the Wings of the Dawn.

<sup>\*</sup>MacLean, Sean, Pange Lingua.

<sup>\*</sup>MacNeill, Nigel, The Literature of the Highlanders, 1892.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, A Walk Round Tobermory, Tobermory, 1988.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, Walking in North Mull, Tobermory, Revised and Updated 2002.

Brown, Olive and Whittaker, Jean, Walking in South Mull and Iona, Tobermory, Revised and Updated 2002.

Bumsted, J. M., The People's Clearance, Highland Emigration to British North America, 1770-1815, Edinburgh, 1982.

Burke's Landed Gentry of Great Britain, 19th edition, vol 1, The Kingdom of Scotland, 2001. [Genealogies of Chieftains etc]

Byrne, Kevin, Colkitto! A Celebration of Clan Donald of Colonsay, 1570-1647, Colonsay, 1997.

Caldwell, David, Islay: The Land of the Lordship, Edinburgh 2008.

Caldwell, David, Islay, Jura and Colonsay: A Historical Guide, Edinburgh, 2001.

Cameron, Ewen A., Land for the People? The British Government and the Scottish Highlands, c.1880-1925, East Linton, 1996.

Cameron, John (ed.), The Justiciary Records of Argyll and the Isles, 1664-1705, vol.1, [The Stair Society] Edinburgh, 1949.

Campbell of Airds, Alastair A History of Clan Campbell, 3 vols, Edinburgh, 2000-2004.

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Records of Argyll, Legends, Traditions and Recollections of Argyllshire Highlanders, Edinburgh, 1885. [includes various Gaelic traditions of the Macleans, and also of Tiree]

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Waifs and Strays of Celtic Tradition, Vol 1 Argyllshire Series, 1889. [includes a description of some of the Maclean stones on Iona]

Campbell, [Lord] Archibald, Waifs and Strays of Celtic Tradition, Vol 5 Argyllshire Series, Campbell, John Gregorson [ed], 1895. [several chapters on Macleans]

Campbell, George W., Torosay 2000, A collection of 200 paragraphs relating to the history of the parish of Torosay, Oban, 1983

Campbell, Herbert (ed), Abstracts of the Particular Register (General Register) of Sasines for Argyll, Bute and Dunbarton, otherwise known as the Argyll Sasines, 2 vols., Edinburgh, 1933, 34.

Campbell, John Lorne (ed), A Collection of Highland Rites and Customs: Copied by Edward Lhuyd from the Manuscript of the Rev. James Kirkwood (1650-1709) and annotated by him with the aid of the Rev. John Beaton, 1975.

Campbell, John Lorne, Canna, the Story of a Hebridean Island, Edinburgh, 1994.

Campbell, J. L. and Thomson, Derick, Edward Lhuyd in the Scottish Highlands 1699-1700, Oxford, 1963.

Campbell, Niall A., 'An old Inventory of the Laird of Coll's Writs', The Celtic Review (October 1912).

Campbell, Neil D., 'An Old Tiree Rental of the year 1662', SHR 9, 1912.

Carmichael, Lismore in Alba, Perth, 1951. Reprinted

Cauble, Frank P., Biography of Wilmer McLean, Lynchburg, Virginia, 1987. [USA Civil War involvement]

\*Celtic Monthly [The] vols 1-21.

Cemetarii, The, Altera Merces, The Burial Grounds of Pennygown, Gruline, Knock, Cill an Alein, in North Mull, also the Memorials of Salen Church and Tributes inscribed on Macquarie's Mausoleum, Tobermory, 2003.

Cemetarii, The, Gus Am Bris an La, The Burial Grounds of Kilninian, Kilmore, Treshnish, Calgary, Ulva and Gometra, in North Mull, with the

Memorials of Kilninian and Kilmore Churches, also isolated Memorials of N.W. Mull, Tobermory, 2006.

Census of Morvern, 1841, appendix to Thornber, Iain [ed], Morvern, A Highland Parish [reprint of Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867], Edinburgh, 2002.

Census of Mull, 1841, transcribed by Jean Whimp

Census of Mull, 1851, transcribed by Jean Whimp

Chalmers, Floyd S., A Gentleman of the Press, the story of Colonel John Bayne Maclean and the publishing empire he founded, Toronto, 1969. [Founder of Maclean's Magazine, Canada]

\*City of Glasgow Police, Regulations, Orders and Instructions, 1857.

\*City of Glasgow Police, Byelaws for Stage and Hackney Carriages and their Drivers, City Porters and Chimney Sweepers, 1864.

Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892; including MacLean, Magnus, Maclean Bards; Maclean Sinclair, A, Points to be cleared up in the History of the Macleans; MacLean, J.P., The Clans and their Crests, The Macleans. Glasgow, 1893.

\*Clan Maclean Magazine [The], vol 1 no 1, 1958.

\*Clan Maclean, 1-10, 1975-85. [\*6 missing]

\*Clan Maclean Magazine [The], vol 2 no 1-4, 1986-97.

Clan Maclean, vol 3, 1-3, 2001-4.

Clan Maclean, vol 4, 1-4, 2005-8.

Clan Maclean in New South Wales - a History 1788-1902, Compiled by Members of Clan Maclean in N.S.W.

Clan Maclean, Litreachan, 1989-1991.

\*Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine [The] 2002, 2007.

Clark, Wallace, The Lord of the Isles Voyage, Kildare, Ireland, 1993.

Cohen, Lysbeth, Elizabeth Macquarie, her Life and Times, Sydney, 1979. [Lachlan Macquarie's wife]

Collectanea de Rebus Albanicis, Original Papers and Documents relating to the History of the Highlands and Islands, The Iona Club, Edinburgh, 1847.

Cooper, Derek, Road to the Isles, Travellers in the Hebrides 1770-1914, Glasgow, 1990.

Cowan, Edward J., 'Clanship kinship and the Campbell acquisition of Islay', in SHR, Oct 1979

Cowan, Edward J., 'Fishers in Drumlie Waters: Campbell Expansion in the time of Gilleasbuig Grumach', in TGSI vol LIV (1984-86).

Cowan, Edward J., Montrose for Covenant and King, Edinburgh, 1977, 1995.

Cowan, Edward J. and McDonald, R. Andrew, [eds] Alba, Celtic Scotland in the Medieval Era, East Linton, 2000.

\*Cowan, James, Sir Donald Maclean, Wellington, NZ, 1940. [Tiree Maclean, father of Spy Donald]

Cregeen, Eric R. (ed.), Argyll Estate Instructions, Mull, Morvern, Tiree, 1771-1805, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1964.

Cregeen, Eric R. (ed.), Inhabitants of the Argyll Estate, 1779, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1963.

Cregeen, Eric R., Recollections of an Argyllshire Drover and Other West Highland Chronicles [Bennett, Margaret, ed], Edinburgh 2004.

Cregeen, Eric R., 'The changing role of the house of Argyll in the Scottish Highlands', in Scotland in the Age of Improvement, Edinburgh, 1996.

Cregeen, Eric R., 'The tacksmen and their successors, a study of tenurial reorganisation in Mull, Morvern and Tiree in the early eighteenth century' in Scottish Studies, 13, 1969.

Cregeen, Eric R. and Mackenzie, Donald W., Tiree Bards and their Bardach, The Poets in a Hebridean Community, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1978 Crumley, Jim, The Heart of Mull, 1996.

Currie, Jo, Macleans, A Biographical Dictionary of Mull People Mainly in the 18th and 19th centuries, Tobermory, 2002.

Currie, Jo, Mull, The Island and its people, Edinburgh, 2000.

Currie, Jo, Mull Family Names for Ancestor Hunters, Tobermory, 1998.

Currie, Jo, 'Mull People' in The Scottish Genealogist, 44, 1, 1997.

Devine, T. M., Clanship to Crofters' War, the Social Transformation of the Scottish Highlands, Manchester, 1994.

Devine, T. M., The Great Highland Famine, Hunger, Emigration and the Scottish Highlands in the Nineteenth Century, Edinburgh, 1988.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Isle of Iona, Romsey, 1999.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Isle of Mull, Romsey, 1994.

De Watteville, Alastair, The Island of Staffa, Romsey, 1993.

Dodgshon, Robert A., From Chiefs to Landlords, Social and Economic Change in the Western Highlands and Islands c. 1493-1820, Edinburgh, 1998.

Donaldson, M.E.M., Wanderings in the Western Highlands and Islands, Paisley, 1920.

Donaldson, M.E.M., Further Wanderings mainly in Argyll, Paisley, 1926

Douglas, Meg, Lost Townships, Silent Voices, a field study of Mull, Argyll and Bute Library Service, 2003.

Downie, Sir Alex. Mackenzie & Downie Alister Mackinnon, Genealogical Account of the Family of Mackinnon, 1882.

Dressler, Camille, Eigg, the Story of an Island, Edinburgh, 1998.

Drever, Helen, Tales of the Scottish Clans, Edinburgh, 1947. [Two pictures of Gillean]

Duart Castle, Guide Book, Norwich, 1978, 2000.

Dunlop, Jean The British Fisheries Society 1786-1893, Edinburgh, 1978.

Eckstein, Eve, Historic Visitors to Mull, Iona and Staffa, London, 1992.

Ellis, M. H., Lachlan Macquarie, his Life, Adventures and Times, Sydney, 1958.

Fairfax-Lucy, Norah, Hebridean Childhood, an Autobiography, Glasgow, 1981.

Faithfull, Joan, The Ross of Mull Granite Quarries, Iona, 1995 Second Edition 2005

Faujas de Saint Fond, B., A Journey through England and Scotland to the Hebrides in 1784, 2 vols, Glasgow, 1907.

Fergusson of Kilkerran, Sir James, Argyll in the Forty-five, London, 1951.

Fielding, Xan, One Man in His Time, The Life of Lieutenant-Colonel N.L.D. ('Billy') McLean, DSO, London, 1990. [2nd World War hero] Findlay, Campbell, Mull of the Isles the Fairest, 1988.

Fisher, Ian, Early Medieval Sculpture in the West Highlands and Islands, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 2001.

Fleming, Stuart E. [ed], Argyllshire Monumental Inscriptions, (pre 1855), vol 2, The Islands of Mull and Ulva, [Scottish Genealogy Society] Edinburgh, 2004.

\*Flying over Holland, 1973.

Fraser Darling, Frank, West Highland Survey, Oxford, 1955.

Fraser Darling, Frank, and Boyd, John Morton, Highlands and Islands, 10th Edition 1979.

Fraser-Mackintosh, Charles, Antiquarian Notes, Historical, Genealogical, and Social, Inverness-shire Parish by Parish, Second Series, Inverness, 1897. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Fraser-Mackintosh, Charles, The Minor Septs of Clan Chattan, Glasgow, 1898. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Fryer, Mary Beacock, Allan Maclean Jacobite General: the Life of an 18th Century Career Soldier, Toronto, 1987.

Gaskell, Philip, Morvern Transformed: A Highland Parish in the Nineteenth Century, Cambridge, 1968. [Reprinted]

Giblin, Cathaldus (ed), Irish Franciscan Mission to Scotland 1619-1646, Documents from Roman Archives, Dublin, 1964.

Gibson, John S., Ships of the '45, London, 1967.

\*Glen, David, The Music of the Clan Maclean, [Clan Maclean Association] Edinburgh, 1900.

Goodare, Julian, 'The Statutes of Iona in context', in SHR, 77,1, 203, 1998.

Graham-Campbell, David, Portrait of Argyll and the Southern Hebrides, London, 1978.

Graham-Campbell, David, 'The younger generation in Argyll at the beginning of the eighteenth century', in Scottish Studies, 18, 1974.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of Argyll-.Register of Inventories, 1693-1702, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1909.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of Argyll-.Register of Testaments, 1674-1800, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1902.

Grant, Francis J., The Commissariot Record of the Isles-.Register of Testaments, 1661-1800, [SRS] Edinburgh, 1902.

Grant, I. F., Highland Folk Ways, Edinburgh, 1995. [Reprinted]

Grant, I. F., The Lordship of the Isles; wanderings in the lost Lordship, Edinburgh, 1935. [Reprinted]

Grant, I.F., The Macleods, the History of a Clan, 1200-1956, London, 1959. [Reprinted]

Gray, Malcolm, The Highland Economy, 1750-1850, Edinburgh, 1957.

Gregory, Donald, The History of the West Highlands and Isles of Scotland, Edinburgh, 1836, 1881, 1975. [Reprinted]

Guthrie-James, David, Torosay Castle and Gardens, 1985.

Haldane, A. R. B., The Drove Roads of Scotland, 1968, Reprinted Colonsay, 1995.

Hannan, Thomas, Iona and Some Satellites, Edinburgh, nd.

Hannan, Thomas, The Beautiful Isle of Mull, with Iona and the Isle of Saints, Edinburgh, 1926.

Hardy, Mary McLean, A Brief History of the Ancestry and Posterity of Allan Maclean, 1715-1786, Vernon, Connecticut, Berkeley CA, 1905.

Haswell-Smith, Hamish, The Scottish Islands, a Comprehensive Guide to Every Scottish Island, Edinburgh, 1996.

Hay, Robert, Lismore, The Great Garden, Edinburgh, 2009.

Hendry, Quest for a Babe, Edinburgh, 1990. [Novel]

Hesketh, Nick, The Story of Mull and Iona, Edinburgh, 1988.

Highland Papers, ed J.R.N. Macphail, 4 vols, [SHS] 1910-32, containing 'Papers relating to the Macleans of Duart', in vol.1

\*Hoey, Brian, Maclean of Duart, The Biography of Chips Maclean, Twickenham, 1986. [Lord Maclean]

Hopkins, Paul, Glencoe and the end of the Highland War, Edinburgh, 1986.

Houston, Colin (ed), Memories of Mull, Iona Houston, 1881 to 1957, Bunessan, nd.

Howard, J, and Jones, A, The Isle of Ulva, A Visitor's Guide, Ulva, 1990

Hunter, James, A Dance called America: the Scottish Highlands, the United States and Canada, Edinburgh, 1994.

Hunter, James (ed.), For the People's Cause: from the writings of John Murdoch, Highland and Irish land reformer, Edinburgh, 1986.

Hunter, James, Scottish Exodus: travels among a worldwide clan, Clan MacLeod Heritage Trust, Edinburgh, 2005.

Hunter, James, The Making of the Crofting Community, Edinburgh, 1987.

Imrie, John (ed.), The Justiciary Records of Argyll and the Isles, 1644-1742, vol. II, 1705-1742, [The Stair Society] Edinburgh, 1969.

Johnson, Samuel, A Journey to the Western Islands of Scotland, with an introduction and notes by J.D. Fleeman, Oxford, 1985.

Kincaid, A (ed) An Account of the Depredations committed upon the Clan Campbell and their followers during the years 1685 & 1686, Edinburgh, 1816.

Kirk, James [ed], The Church in the Highlands, Edinburgh, 1998.

Knox, John A Tour through the Highlands of Scotland and the Hebride Isles in 1786, 1975.

Kruger, Heather, Johann Carl August Kruger, and his Descendants in Australia, Australia, 1981. [descendants of Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]

Lamont, Gene Donald, They Came From Tiree, Tiree and the Famine Emigrants, a History of Tiree, 7000BC to 1851, revised edition 2007.

Lawson, Bill, The Churches at Howmore - A South Uist Church Site in its Historical Setting, 1998.

Lawson, Bill, North Uist in History and Legend, Edinburgh 2004.

LeMay, Jackie, Ardmeanach: A Hidden Corner of Mull, Iona, 1995.

LeMay, Jackie, and Gardner, Joanna, Glen More: a drive through history, Tobermory, 2003.

\*Linkletter, Michael David, Bu Dual Dha Sin (That was His Birthright) Gaelic Scholar Alexander Maclean Sinclair, 1840-1924, Cambridge Mass, 2006. [Maclean genealogist]

Livingstone of Bachuil, Alistair; Aikman, Christian W.H.; Hart, Betty Stuart, [eds], Muster Roll of Prince Charles Edward Stuart's Army, 1745-46, Aberdeen, 1984.

Lobban, Margaret MacDonald, Lachann Dubh a' Chrogain, Lachlan Livingstone and his Grandsons, Iona, 2004. [Lochbuie bard]

\*Logan, James, The Scottish Gael, 2 vols, 1831, [ed Rev Alex Stewart] Edinburgh, 1876.

Loudon, Joseph Buist (ed) The Diary of James Robertson Sheriff Substitute of Tobermory 1842-1846, Argyll and Bute Library Service, 2001. Love, John A., Rum: A Landscape Without Figures, Edinburgh, 2001.

Love, John A., The Isle of Rum, 1982.

Low, Margaret, Highland Memories, privately printed, 1992.

Lynam, C.C. The Log of The Blue Dragon, 1892-1904, London, 1908.

McAnna, James, The Ulva Families of Shotts, Shotts, 1991.

Macarthur, Dugald, 'Some emigrant ships from the West Highlands', in TGSI, 55 (1986-8).

Macarthur, E. Mairi, Columba's Island: Iona from Past to Present, Edinburgh, 1995.

Macarthur, E. Mairi, [with Colin Baxter], Iona, Grantown-on-Spey, 1997.

Macarthur, E. Mairi, Iona, the Living Memory of a Crofting Community, 1750-1914, Edinburgh, 1990, 2nd Edition 2002.

MacAulay, John, Birlinn - Longships of the Hebrides, Harris, 1996.

MacConnochie, Alex I., The Deer and Deer Forests of Scotland, London, 1923.

MacCormick, John, An t-eilean Muileach: the Island of Mull, its History, Scenes and Legends, Glasgow, 1923.

MacCulloch, Donald B. The wondrous Isle of Staffa, Its History, Geology, Features and Associations, 3rd Edition, Edinburgh, 1956.

Macculloch, John, The Highlands and Western Islands of Scotland, 4 vols, London, 1824.

MacDonald, Rev A., and MacDonald, Rev A, Clan Donald, 3 vols, Inverness, 1896-1904.

Macdonald of Castleton, Donald J., Clan Donald, 1978.

Macdonald, Duncan, 'Eminent Highland doctors. Dr Hector McColl, Tobermory' in The Caledonian Medical Journal [The Journal of the Caledonian Medical Society], new series, vol. vi. July 1904, (October 1906).

Macdonald, James, A General View of the Agriculture of the Hebrides or Western Isles of Scotland, Edinburgh, 1811.

\*McDonald, Jill, History of Ewen and Rachel McDonald and their Descendants, Australia, 1985. [descendants of Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]

MacDonald, Murdo, 'The droving trade in the records of the commissioners of supply of Argyllshire' in TGSI, 58, (1993-94).z

MacDonald, Norman, The Clan Ranald of Garmoran, A History of the MacDonalds of Clanranald, Edinburgh, 2008.

McDonald, R. Andrew, The Kingdom of the Isles, Scotland's Western Seaboard, c1100-c1336, East Linton, 1996.

MacDougall of MacDougall, Hope, Kerrera; Mirror of History. Reprint, Lochar, 2004.

MacDougall, Betty Folklore from Coll (nd).

MacDougall, Betty, Guide to Coll, Glasgow, 1986.

MacDougall, Jean, Highland Postbag, the Correspondence of Four MacDougall Chiefs 1715-1865, London, 1984.

MacEwan, Laurence, A Guide to Eigg and Muck, 1973.

Macfarlane, W., Genealogical Collections concerning Families in Scotland, 2 vols, [SHS] 1900.

Macfarlane, W., Geographical Collections relating to Scotland, 3 vols, [SHS] 1906-8.

\*McGillivray, Robert, The Clan MacGillivray, West Calder, 2004.

McGilvray, Roy, McGilvray of Pennygael, typescript, 1998.

Macinnes, Allan I., Clanship, Commerce and the House of Stuart, 1603-1788, East Linton, 1996.

MacInnes, J., 'West Highland Sea Power', in TGSI vol. xlviii (1972-4).

Macinnes, John, The Evangelical Movement in the Highlands of Scotland 1688 to 1800, Aberdeen, 1951.

Macintyre, Lorn, Tobermory Days, Stories from an Island, Glendaruel, 2003.

McKay, Margaret M. (ed.), The Rev. Dr John Walker's Report on the Hebrides of 1764 and 1771, Edinburgh, 1980.

Mackay, William, Urquhart and Glenmoriston, Inverness, 1893, 1914.

MacKechnie, Aonghus, Carragh-chuimne, Two Islay monuments and two Islay people, Hector MacLean and John Francis Campbell, Islay,

2004. [Collector of Gaelic traditions]

Mackechnie, John, The Clan Maclean: a Gaelic seapower, Edinburgh, 1954.

Mackechnie, John [ed], The Dewar Manuscripts, vol 1, Glasgow, 1963.

Mackenzie, Anne, Island voices: Air bilibh an t-sluaigh: traditions of north Mull, Edinburgh, 2002.

Mackenzie, David, Farmer in the Western Isles, London, 1954. [Reprinted]

Mackenzie, Donald W., As it was, Sin mar a Bha, An Ulva Boyhood, Edinburgh, 2000.

Mackenzie, Hector Hugh, The Macleans of Boreray, with cadet families and branches. Inverness, 1946. [Boreray genealogy]

Mackenzie, W.C., The Highlands and Isles of Scotland, A Historical Survey, revised edition 1949.

Mackichan, David, All you Need to Know about the Pilgrims' Way to Iona, Craignure, 1987.

Mackinnon, Sir Alex. Downie, Genealogical Account of the Family of Mackinnon, London, 1883.

MacKinnon, The Chief and Chiefship of Clan MacKinnon, 1931.

Mackinnon, Donald D., Memoirs of Clan Fingon, Tunbridge Wells, n.d.

Mackintosh, A.M., The Mackintoshes and Clan Chattan, Second Edition, Edinburgh, 1903. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

Mackleane, Sir John, 'Remarks on the Loyal Dissuasive', in The Loyall Dissuasive [Alexander D. Murdoch ed), SHS, 1902.

Maclean, Alan, No, I Tell a Lie, It Was the Tuesday, A trudge through the life and times of Alan Maclean, London, 1997. [Publisher]

Maclean, Alasdair, A Macdonald for the Prince, The story of Neil MacEachen, Stornoway 1982. [MacEachan was really a Maclean]

Maclean, Alasdair, and Gibson, John S., Summer Hunting a Prince, The Escape of Charles Edward Stuart, Stornoway, 1992.

Maclean, Alasdair, Night falls on Ardnamurchan, the Twilight of a Crofting Family, London, 1984. [Autobiographical]

Maclean, Alexander [ed] A breif [sic] genealogical account of the ffamily [sic] of McLean, Edinburgh, 1872. ['The Ardgour MS']

Maclean, Alexander, The Story of the Kirk in Nova Scotia [ed A. Maclean-Sinclair] Pictou, 1911.

MacLean, Alistair, Hebridean Altars, 1937. Reprinted [Father of Alistair, the Novelist]

McLean, Alister Bruce, A Brief History of the McLean Family of Morar, Inverness-shire, Scotland and Gippsland, Victoria, Australia, 2nd Edition, Australia, 2005.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'Brigadier General Allan Maclean, 1725-1798', CMHT pamphlet, 2007.

[Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan] Clan Maclean, Historical Notes to accompany the 1996 Gathering tour.

Maclean [of Dochgarroch], Allan, Telford's Highland Churches, The Highland Churches and Manses of Thomas Telford, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1989.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Evolution of Maclean Heraldry' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Names of the Clan Maclean' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Allan, 'The Personal names of the Macleans' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

Maclean, Brian, Macleans of Killean and Ardfinaig, privately printed, 1999.

Maclean, Calum I., with Foreword by Sorley Maclean and Photographs by Cailean Maclean, The Highlands, Edinburgh 1990. [*The Folklorist, brother of Sorley*]

Maclean [of Dunconnel], Charles, Island on the Edge of the World. Edinburgh, 1972. [Reissued]

\*Maclean of Dunconnel, Charles, 'The spy who never was; Was Sir Fitzroy Maclean of Dunconnel the real James Bond?' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

Maclean, Charles [Lord Maclean], Only, London, 1979.

Maclean, Charles [Edinburgh], The Clan Almanac, Moffat, 1990.

Maclean, Charles, The Isle of Mull: Placenames, Meanings and Stories, Dumfries, 1997.

[Maclean, Charles Maxwell] History of the Clan Tarlach o'Bui, Aberdeen, 1865. [Dochgarroch genealogy]

MacLean, Colin, Monkeys, Bears and Gutta Percha, Memories of Manse, Hospital and War, Edinburgh, 2001. [Autobiography of journalism and much else]

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Donald, 'The Ardgour ancestry and the early Macleans' in The Clan Maclean Magazine, vol 2 no 9.

\*Maclean, [Lt Col] Donald, 'Clan Maclean Pipers' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

McLean, Donald F., The Descendants of Donald McLaine of Grantully, Perthshire, 1710-1853, Part I, Australia, 1999.

McLean, Donald F., The Descendants of Peter and Eliza McLean in Australia, 1853-2000, Part II, Australia, 2000.

McLean, Donald and Christina, History of Donald & Christina McLean and their Descendants – First Wheat Crop Growers in South Australia 1838, Genealogical Council Inc, Australia, 1995. [Donald and Christina (McPhee) McLean from Blaich]

Maclean [of Duart and Morvaren], Fitzroy, Short History of the Life of Col. Sir F.D. Maclean, Bart, as told by himself to E.E. Greenhill, typescript, c1920. [*The Chief*]

Maclean, Fiona, Around Lochaber, Scotland in old Photographs, Stroud, 1996.

\*Maclean, Fitzroy, A Concise History of Scotland, 1970.

Maclean, Fitzroy, Bonnie Prince Charlie, London, 1988.

Maclean, Fitzroy, Highlanders, A History of the Highland Clans, London, 1995.

Maclean, Fitzroy, The Isles of the Sea, Glasgow, 1985.

\*McLean, G.R.D., Poems of the Western Highlanders, London, 1961.

McLean, G.T., Captain Tom, Australia, 1986. [Autobiography]

MacLean, Gilleasbuig, The Long, Long, Years, Durham NZ, 1996.

MacLean, Hector, Fighters in Defence, with memories of the Glasgow Squadron, Kilmacolm, 1999. [C. Hector MacLean, Vice President CMA] \*McLean, Hugh [1794-1878], In the Selkirk Colony, 1812-1816.

Maclean of Pennycross, Iain Gilleasbuig, Handlist of the Papers of Rear-Admiral Iain Maclean of Pennycross, 1902-1988, Churchill Archives Centre, Cambridge.

Maclean, Ian, Clan Maclean Map; History and References, [CMHT] 2007.

Maclean, Ian, '236 – The New Brunswick (MacLean) Kilties', CMHT pamphlet, 2006.

\*Maclean, Ian G.C., Commonsense Security in Industry, 1993.

MacLean, Ir J., 'Genealogie Macleane', in Gens Nostra Geslacht Maandbland Der Nederladse Genealogische Vereniging, Maart 1973.

MacLean, Ir J., 'Huwelijken Van Militairen, behorende tot het eerste regiment van de Schotse Brigade in Nederland, ontleend aan de gereformeerde trouwboeken van 1674 tot 1708', in DeBrabatseLeeuw (Sept. Okt. 1971).

MacLean, Isabella G., Your father and I, East Linton, 1998. [Aberdeen Autobiography by the mother of Colin MacLean]

\*MacLean, Isabelle McCall, The Scottish Covenanter Genealogical Index (1630-1712), USA, 2007.

\*MacLean, Isabelle McCall, The Oath and The Covenant, The "Killing Times" in Scotland, USA, 2007 [historical novel]

MacLean, J. Angus, Making it Home, Charlottetown PEI, 1998. [Autobiography of Premier]

\*MacLean, J.P., A History of the Clan MacLean from its first settlement at Duard Castle to the present time. Cincinnati, Ohio, 1889.

\*MacLean, J.P., A MacLean Souvenir. Franklin, Ohio, 1918.

\*MacLean, J.P., An Account of the Surname of Maclean, or Macghillean, from the Manuscript of 1751, and A Sketch of the Life and Writings of Lachlan MacLean [of Arnabost, Isle of Coll], with other information pertaining to the Clan Maclean, Xenia, Ohio, 1914.

\*MacLean, J. P., An Examination into the Evidences of the Chiefship of the Clann-Ghilleain, Glasgow, 1895.

MacLean, J. P., An Historical Account of the Settlements of Scotch Highlanders in America, Cleveland, 1900.

MacLean, J.P., Fingal's Cave, Cincinnati, 1890.

\*MacLean, J.P., First Annual Gathering of the Clan Maclean of North America, St John, New Brunswick, 1893.

MacLean, J.P., Flora MacDonald in America, with a Brief Sketch of Her Life and Adventures, Lumberton, NC., 1909.

MacLean, J. P., History of the Island of Mull, embracing Description, Climate, Geology, Flora, Fauna, Antiquities, Folklore, Superstitions, Traditions, with an account of its inhabitants, 2 vols, Greenville, Ohio, 1923.

MacLean, J. P., Renaissance of the Clan Maclean: gathering at Duart Castle in 1912. Columbus, Ohio, 1913.

MacLean, J.P., 'The Clans and their Crests, the Macleans', in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

\*MacLean, J.P., The Family of Maclean, ed. From MS entitled "A brief general account of the family of Maclean, from its first settling in the island of Mull...in the year 1716" now in the Advocates Library, Edinburgh, Toronto, 1915.

Maclean, James N.M. [ed], Clan Gillean (the Macleans), London 1955

\*[Maclean, James N.M.] Clan Maclean Association, London and District Branch, Secretary's Report, London 1954.

Maclean, James N.M., Reward is Secondary: the Life of a Political Adventurer and an Inquiry into the Mystery of Junius, London, 1963. [Lauchlin Maclean]

Maclean, James N.M., 'The Camerons of Glendessary and Dungallon', in The Scottish Genealogist vol. xvii, no 4 (December 1971).

Maclean, James N.M., 'The Frasers of Kiltarlity: cadets of a deposed Mackintosh chief', in The Scottish Genealogist vol. xvi, no 2 (June 1969).

\*Maclean, James N.M., The Macleans of Sweden, Edinburgh, 1971. [Branch of the Duart family]

\*Maclean, John, Historical and Traditional Sketches of Highland Families and of the Highlands, Inverness, 1895.

\*Maclean, John, Reminiscences of a Clachnacuddin Nonagenarian, Inverness, 1842, reprinted 1886.

Maclean, John Raglan, The Macleans of Howick and Tamaki, Auckland, 1997. [descendants of the [Mac]Leans of Blisland, Cornwall]

McLean, John, The McLeans of Camp Creek, Australia, 1998.

MacLean, Kennedy, Our Ancestors, Antigonish, Nova Scotia, 1963.

\*MacLean, Lachlan, Adhamh agus Eubh na Craobh Sheanachais nan Gael, Edinburgh, 1837.

MacLean, Lachlan, An Historical Account of Iona, Glasgow, 1833.

\*MacLean, Lachlan The History of the Celtic Language, Glasgow, 1840.

[MacLean, Lachlan], The Native Steam-boat Companion, 1845 [contains various Maclean traditions]

\*Maclean of Dochgarroch, Loraine, Indomitable Colonel, London, 1986. [Sir Alan Cameron's mother was a Maclean of Drimnin]

Maclean of Dochgarroch, Loraine [ed], The Middle Ages in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1981.

Maclean of Dochgarroch Loraine [ed], The Seventeenth Century in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1986.

MacLean, Magnus 'Maclean Bards' in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

\*MacLean, Magnus, The Literature of the Celts, 1902.

McLean, Marianne, The People of Glengarry: Highlanders in transition, 1745-1820, Montreal, 1991.

Maclean, Marigold, The First Twenty Years, 1983-2003, CMAA, Australia, 2003.

\*MacLean, Marjory, Taking the Wings of the Dawn.

\*MacLean, Norman, The Former Days, London, 1945. [Moderator of the General Assembly of the Church of Scotland]

\*MacLean, Norman, Set Free, London, 1949.

\*MacLean, Norman, The Years of Fulfilment, London, 1953.

Maclean, Sir Robert, 'Onward in Faith', Maclean of Carruth, 1740-1994, privately printed, 1994.

MacLean, Rory, The Oatmeal Ark: From the Western Isles to a Promised Sea, London, 1997, Republished 2008. [Novel]

McLean, Ruari, True to Type, a typographical autobiography, London, 2000. [Typologist, lived on Mull]

\*MacLean, Sean, Pange Lingua.

MacLean, Sorley and Crichton Smith, Ian, Eimhir, Stornoway, 1999

Maclean, Veronica, Lady Maclean's Cook Book, London, 1966.

Maclean, Veronica, Past Forgetting, A Memoir of Heroes, Adventure and Love, London 2002. [Sir Fitzroy of Dunconnel's wife]

Maclean, Virginia, Much Entertainment, a visual and culinary record of Johnson and Boswell's tour of Scotland in 1773, London, 1973. \*Maclean, Will, Voyages.

Maclean, William Campbell, Memories of a Long Life, 1895. [A Maclean of Boreray]

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, From Clan to Regiment, Six Hundred Years in the Hebrides, 1400-2000, Barnsley, 2007. [Coll genealogy] Maclean Bristol, Nicholas, Hebridean Decade, Mull, Coll and Tiree, 1761-1771, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1982.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas (ed.), Inhabitants of the Inner Isles, Morvern and Ardnamurchan, 1716, [Scottish Record Society] Edinburgh, 1998.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Jacobite Officers in the Scots Brigade in Dutch Service', in JSAHR, vol. 82 no 330 (Summer 2004).

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, Murder under Trust: the Crimes and Death of Sir Lachlan Mor Maclean of Duart, 1558-1598, East Linton, 1998. Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Murdoch Maclaine, Lieutenant 42nd Foot?' in JSAHR, vol. 77 no 310 (Summer 1999).

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'Rivals for leadership of the Clan Maclean: Brolas versus Torloisk' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'The Battle of Inverkeithing and the Macleans 20th July 1651', CMHT pamphlet, 2001, also in The Clan Maclean Magazine Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, The Kirk on the Hill, The story of the Church in the Island of Coll AD 550-2007, Coll, 2007.

Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, 'The Macleans from 1560-1707: A Re-appraisal', in Maclean of Dochgarroch Loraine [ed], The Seventeenth Century in the Highlands, [Inverness Field Club] Inverness, 1986.

\*Maclean-Bristol, Nicholas, Warriors and Priests: the History of the Clan Maclean, 1300-1570, East Linton, 1995.

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'Clann Duilligh' in Mac-Talla, vol 12, no 2, Cape Breton, 1903.

Maclean Sinclair, A, Clarsach na Coille, 1881.

Maclean Sinclair, A., Comhchruinneachadh Ghlinn-a-Bhàird: the Glenbard Collection of Gaelic Poetry, Parts 1-3, Charlottetown, PEI, 1888-90. Maclean Sinclair, A., Dàin Spioradail le Iain Mac-Gilleain, Edinburgh. 1880

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., Filidh na Coille, Dàin agus Òrain leis a' Bhàrd Mac-Gilleain agus le Feadhainn Eile. Charlottetown, Canada, 1901. [John MacLean the Poet]

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., Na Baird Leathanach: The Maclean Bards, 2 vols. Charlottetown, Canada, 1898, 1900.

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'Points to be cleared up in the History of the Macleans' in Clan Maclean [The], Instituted 1892, Glasgow, 1893.

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., The Clan Gillean. Charlottetown, Canada, 1899.

Maclean Sinclair, A., The Gaelic Bards from 1411 to 1715, 1715-65, 1765-1825, 1825-1875 [4 vols], Canada, 1890, 1892, 1896, 1904.

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The MacGillivrays of Mull', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Macleans of Crossapol', in Celtic Monthly 11 (1903).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Macleans of Boreray', in Celtic Monthly 13 (1905).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The MacQuarries of Ulva', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Origin of the Clan Maclean', in Celtic Magazine, 13 (1888).

\*Maclean Sinclair, A., 'The Origins of the Macleans', in Celtic Monthly 14 (1906).

MacLean Watt, Lauchlan, Scottish Life and Poetry, London, 1912.

McLeay, Alison, The Tobermory Treasure, the True Story of the Fabulous Armada Galleon, 1986.

MacLeod, Bruce, Genealogy of Family Macleod of Talisker, Australia, 1990. [closely connected with the Macleans of Coll]

Macleod, John, Highlanders, A History of the Gaels, Edinburgh, 1996.

MacLeod, John N., Memorials of the Rev. Norman Macleod Senior, DD, Edinburgh, 1898.

MacLeod, Norma, Raasay, The Island and its Peoples, 2002.

Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867.

McLynn, Frank, Fitzroy Maclean, London, 1992.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Highways and Byways in Mull and Iona, Barr, 1988, reprinted 1992.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Mull and Iona, Newton Abbot, 1995.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Tall Tales from an island, Barr, 1984.

Macnab, Peter Angus, Tobermory Teuchter, a first hand account of life on Mull in the early years of the 20th century, Edinburgh, 1998, reprinted 2003.

Macnab, Peter, Traditional Tales of Mull, Tobermory, 1998.

Macneil of Barra, Robert L., Castle in the Sea, London, 1964.

Macneil of Barra, Robert L., The Clan Macneil, Clann Niall of Scotland, USA, 1923, Scotpress, 1985.

\*MacNeill, Nigel, The Literature of the Highlanders, 1892.

McNeill, P.G.B. and Macqueen, H.L., [eds] Atlas of Scottish History to 1707, Edinburgh, 1996.

\*McNie, Alan, Clan Maclean (Extensively Revised), Your Clan Heritage, Jedburgh, 1989.

McPhee, Ian, The McPhees of Argyll, Australia, 2006.

Macquarrie, Alan, Iona through the ages, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1983.

McQuarrie, Duncan M., The Placenames of Mull, Inverness, 1982.

McSwan, Eleanor H., Historic Buildings of Maclean, Maclean District Historical Society, Australia, 1976.

McSwan, Eleanor H., Maclean and the Scottish Connection, Maclean District Historical Society, Australia, 1986.

Mactavish, Duncan C. (ed.), Minutes of the Synod of Argyll, 1639-1651, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1943.

Mactavish, Duncan C. (ed.), Minutes of the Synod of Argyll, 1652-1661, [SHS] Edinburgh, 1944.

Mangold, Gretchen, History of the Carsons and McCleans, Bennington, NE, USA, 1993. [descendants of John McClean, Corkuran, Balybay, Ireland, born 1802]

Marsden, Fiona, Lachlan Macquarie, from Mull to Australia, Tobermory, 2001.

Martin, Colin, 'Resurrecting the Swan: Archaeology of a Cromwellian Shipwreck, 1653', in History Scotland Magazine, vol 1, no 1.

Martin, Martin, A Description of the Western Islands of Scotland, Stirling, 1934. [Reprinted]

Martin, Paula, Lochaber, a Historical Guide, Edinburgh, 2005.

Matheson, Dr Ann, Somhairlie Macgill-eain, Sorley MacLean, National Library of Scotland Exhibition Catalogue No 19, Edinburgh, 1981.

Meek, Donald E., 'Evangelical missionaries in the early nineteenth century Highlands', in Scottish Studies, 28 (1987).

Meek, Donald E., Island Harvest: A History of Tiree Baptist Church, 1838-1988, Tiree, 1988.

Meek, Donald E, 'The Baptists of the Ross of Mull: Evangelical Experience and Social Change in a West Highland Community', in Northern Studies, 26, 1989.

Meek, Donald E., Sunshine and Shadow: The Story of the Baptists of Mull, Edinburgh, 1991.

Meek, Donald E., Tuath is tighearna, Tenants and Landlords, an Anthology of Gaelic Poetry of Social and Political Protest from the Clearances to the Land Agitation (1800-1890) [Scottish Gaelic Texts Society], Edinburgh, 1995.

Memoir of The Geological Survey of Scotland - Tertiary And Post-Tertiary Geology of Mull, Loch Aline and Oban, [HMSO] London, 1924.

Mercer, John, Hebridean Islands, Glasgow, 1974. [re Jura contains references to Macleans]

Metcalfe, G.E., Maclean of the Gold Coast: The life and times of George Maclean, 1801-1847, London, 1962. [Governor of the Gold Coast]

Miers, Mary, The Western Seaboard, An Illustrated Architectural Guide, Edinburgh, 2008.

\*Milton, Nan, John MacLean, London, 1973. [Red MacLean, the Communist]

Moncreiffe of that Ilk, Sir Iain The Highland Clans, London, 1967. [Reprinted]

Morison, Neil Rankin, 'Clann Duiligh: Piobairean Chloinn Ghill-Eathain', in TGSI vol. XXXVII (1934-6).

\*Morris, H.F., Two Brave Brothers, c1917. [John and Charles Rolls, Sir Fitzroy's nephews]

Munro, Jean, The Founding of Tobermory, [SWHIHR] Coll, 1976.

Munro, Jean & R. W. (eds), Acts of the Lords of the Isles, 1336-1493 [SHS], Edinburgh, 1986.

Munro, R. W., 'Governor Lachlan Macquarie and his family circle', in The Scottish Genealogist, 36, 1, 1989.

Munro R.W., Highland Clans and Tartans, London 1977.

Munro R.W., Kinsmen and Clansmen, 1971.

[Munro, R. W.], Lachlan Macquarrie XVI of Ulva, with notes on some clansmen in India, Karachi, 1944.

Munro, R. W. (ed.), Monro's Western Isles of Scotland [including Genealogies of the Clans, 1549], Edinburgh, 1961. [Reprinted]

Munro, R. W., 'The Macquarries of Ulva' in The Scottish Genealogist, xv.2, p.25-30, 1968.

Munro, R. W. and Macquarrie, Alan, Clan MacQuarrie, a History, Auburn, Mass., 1996.

Munroe, John A, Louis McLane: Federalist and Jacksonian, New Brunswick, NJ, 1973. [1786-1857, Senator, Secretary of the Treasury, Secretary of State]

Murray W.H., The Hebrides, 1969.

Murray, W.H., The Islands of Western Scotland, the Inner and Outer Hebrides, 1973.

O Baoill, Colm, Eachann Bacach and other Maclean poets, [Scottish Gaelic Texts Society] Edinburgh, 1979.

O Baoill, Colm, Duanaire Colach 1537-1757, Aberdeen, 1997.

Ogg, Diana, Coll, island of the Hebrides, London, 1988.

Oram, Richard, and Stell, Geofrey, Lordship and Architecture in Medieval and Renaissance Scotland, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 2005.

Origines Parochialis Scotiae [OPS], 3 vols in 2, Innes, Cosmo [ed], especially vol 2 pts i and ii, Edinburgh, 1851-2.

Orr, Willie, Discovering Argyll, Mull and Iona, Edinburgh, 1990.

Peel, Hilary, A History of Kilmore Church, Tobermory, 2005.

Peel, Hilary, Salen Church, A History, Tobermory, 2001.

Pitts, Jim [ed], The Log of The Blue Dragon III, Northampton, 2000.

[A] Record of the Visit of Sir Lachlan Maclean Bt., D.L. to N.S.W. Nov. 1997.

Register of Voters for Argyllshire, 1836. n.d. but presumably 1837.

Riddle, Carol, A township on the Ross of Mull, a study in local history, published by Highland Renewal, Fionnphort, nd.

Ritchie, Alec & Euphemia, Iona Past and Present, Edinburgh, 1934.

Ritchie, John, Lachlan Macquarie: a Biography, Melbourne, 1986.

Rixon, Denis, The Small Isles, Canna, Rum, Eigg, and Muck, Edinburgh, 2001.

Rixon, Denis, The West Highland Galley, Edinburgh, 1998, 2003.

\*Roads, Elizabeth, 'Maclean Heraldry' in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Robert, Cecil, A Divided Life. A Biography of Donald MacLean. London 1988. [The famous spy's family came originally from Tiree]

Roberts, John L., Feuds, Forays and Rebellions, History of the Highland Clans 1475-1625, Edinburgh, 1999.

Robertson, Charles, Ancient Hebridean Tales of Jura, collected 1908 to 1914, edited by Peter Youngson, Kirriemuir, n.d.

Rose, David G., 'Skirmish on Granish Moor, June 1689, a Forgotten Episode in the Campaign of Bonnie Dundee', in History Scotland Magazine, vol. 5, no 6 (Nov/Dec 2005); vol. 6, no.1 (Jan/Feb 2006).

Ross, D.K., The Pioneers and Churches, New Glasgow, Nova Scotia, nd (c.1955) [Dochgarroch descendants]

Ross, Raymond J. and Hendry Joy, Sorley Maclean, Critical Essays, Edinburgh, 1986.

Ross of Mull Historical Centre, Discover the Ross Explore the Social History, Archaeology and Landscape of the Ross of Mull, Bunessan, 2004.

Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland [RCAHMS], Argyll vol 3, Mull, Tiree, Coll and Northern Argyll, Edinburgh 1980.

Royal Commission on Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland [RCAHMS], Argyll vol 4, Iona, Edinburgh 1980.

Sadler, John, Clan Donald's Greatest Defeat, the Battle of Harlaw 1411, Stroud, 2005.

Sanger, Keith, 'Mull and the Maclean pipers' in The Piping Times, June 1990.

\*Scarlet, James D., 'Tartans of the Clan Maclean', in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2002.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'Marriage, Divorce and Concubinage in Gaelic Scotland' in TGSI vol. li, 466.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'Origins of clans', in The Companion to Gaelic Scotland, (D.S. Thomson ed) 1983.

Sellar, W.D.H., 'The origins and Ancestry of Somerled', in SHR vol, XLV, (1966).

Shedden, Hugh, The Story of Lorn, and its Isles and Oban, Oban, 1938.

Smith, J., General view of the agriculture of the county of Argyle, London, 1813.

Snow, G.S., Arthur John Maclean, Bishop of Moray, Primus, Edinburgh, 1950.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Archibald Lang McLean - Doctor, Explorer, Scientist, Soldier, Author, Australia, 2008.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW, A History 1788-1902, 2nd Supplement.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW Gazetteer 1788 - 1902, Vol. I.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW Gazetteer 1788 – 1902, Vol II.

\*Sproule, Colin McLean, Clan Maclean in NSW, The First Decade, 1985-1995, Australia, 1995.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs in NSW - Assisted and Bounty Immigrants, 1828-1900, 1st Supplement.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs in Australia in World War II, Series III - Royal Australian Air Force.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs of Australia in World War II, Series II - Royal Australian Navy.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Macleans and Septs of NSW in World War I, Series I - Australian Army.

Sproule, Colin McLean, Septs of Clan Maclean in NSW 1788 to the early 1900s.

Sproule, Colin McLean and Norma, They Passed This Way - Clan Maclean and Septs in some NSW Cemeteries.

Skene, William F, Celtic Scotland, 3 vols, Edinburgh 1876-80, Reprinted New York, 1971.

Skene, William F, The Highlanders of Scotland, their Origin, History and Antiquities, 2 vols, London, 1836, Edited by Alex Macbain, Sitrling, 1902.

[The First] Statistical Account of Scotland, 1791-1799, [OSA] edited by Sir John Sinclair, vol. viii, Argyll, (Mainland), [Gray, Malcolm ed] Wakefield, 1983.

[The Second] Statistical Account of Scotland [NSA], Edinburgh, 1835-45.

[The Third] Statistical Account, The County of Argyll [editor, MacDonald, C.M], Glasgow, 1961.

Steer, K. and Bannerman, J., Late Medieval Monumental Sculpture in the West Highlands, [RCAHMS] Edinburgh, 1977.

Stevenson, David, Scottish Covenanters and Irish Confederates, Scottish-Irish Relations in the Mid-Seventeenth Century, [Ulster Historical Foundation] Belfast, 1981.

Stevenson, David, Highland Warrior: Alasdair MacColla and the Civil Wars, Edinburgh, 1994. reprint of Alasdair MacColla and the Highland problem in the Seventeenth Century, Edinburgh, 1980.

Stewart of Ardvorlich, John, The Camerons, A History of Clan Cameron, Clan Cameron Association, 1971.

Stewart of Garth, David, Sketches of the Character, Institutions and Customs of the Highlanders of Scotland, Inverness, 1822, reprint 1885. [Reprinted]

Storrie, Margaret, May: Biography of an Island, Islay, 1997.

Sutherland, Donald, Butt and Ben, A Highland Boyhood, Edinburgh, 1963, Reprinted as 'Highland Boyhood', 1996. [Chapter on Murdoch and Kenneth Maclaine of Lochbuie]

Swire, Otta, The Inner Hebrides and their Legends, London, 1964.

Tabraham, Chris, Urquhart Castle, [Historic Scotland] Haddington, 1991, 2002.

Thomson, D.P., Iona to Ardnamurchan by Coll, Coll and Tiree, A pilgrimage through the Centuries, Crieff, 1956.

Thomson, Derick S., 'Gaelic Learned Orders and Literati in Medieval Scotland', in Scottish Studies, XII, (1968, i).

Thomson, Derick S. (ed.), The Companion to Gaelic Scotland, Glasgow, 1994.

Thornber, Iain, Dail na Cille, The Field of the Church. Kingairloch Graveyard, Ardgour, and its inscribed stones, with notes on local history and folklore, privately printed, 2000

\*Thornber, Iain, 'Maclean's skull', in The Clan Maclean Souvenir Magazine, 2007.

Thornber, Iain [ed], Morvern, A Highland Parish, reprint of Macleod, Norman, Reminiscences of a Highland Parish, 1867, with Introduction,

Notes and Appendices, and many unpublished illustrations Edinburgh, 2002.

Thornber, Iain, The Carved Stones of Keil, Morvern, Argyll. privately printed, 2000

Thornber, Iain, 'Rats: an old Morvern Song', in TGSI, vol. LV, (1989).

Thornber, Iain, 'Some Morvern Songwriters of the Nineteenth Century' in TGSI 53 (1982-84).

Thornber, Iain, The Castles of Morvern, Argyll, Their History, Antiquities and Architecture, Fort William, 1975.

Thornber, Iain, The Gaelic Bards of Morvern, privately printed.

Thornber, Iain, The Sculptured Stones of Cill Choluimchille, Morvern, Argyll, with notes on the Early Church and the Tomb of the Spanish Princess, privately printed, 1975.

Turner D.J. and Dunbar, H.G., 'Breacachadh Castle, Coll excavation and field survey, 1965-8', in PSAS 102 (1969-70) 155-87.

Walker, Frank Arnold, Argyll and the Islands, An Illustrated Architectural Guide, Edinburgh 2003.

Walker, Frank Arnold, The Buildings of Scotland, Argyll and Bute, London, 2000

Webster, Jack, Alistair MacLean, A Life, London, 1991. [The Novelist]

West Highland Notes and Queries, Journal of the Society of West Highland and Island Historical Research.

Weyndling, Walter, Ferry Tales of Argyll and the Isles, Stroud, 1996.

Whitehead, G. Kenneth, The Deer Stalking Grounds of Great Britain and Ireland, London, 1960. [includes estates and deer forests on the Island of Mull]

Whittaker, Jean, Mull: Monuments and History, Tobermory, 1999.

Whyte, Christopher [ed], Somhairle Macgill-eain, Sorley Maclean, Dain do Eimhir, Poems to Eimhir, Glasgow, 2002.

Whyte, Henry ['Fionn'], The Rankins, Pipers to the Macleans of Duart, and later to the Macleans of Coll, [Clan Maclean Association] Glasgow, 1907.

Wormald, Jenny, Lords and Men in Scotland: Bonds of Manrent 1442-1603, Edinburgh, 1985.

Young, James D. John Maclean: Clydeside Socialist, Glasgow, 1992. [Red MacLean, the Communist]

Youngson, Peter, Jura, Island of Deer, Edinburgh, 2001.